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General Disclosures
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Reporting Directive
This Disclosure Statement of the Bank a5 at and For the year ended 32 March 2015 has been
prepared under the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registered
Banks) Order 2014 {as amended),
Registered Bank
Mame Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited
Address:. 30 Manukau Road
Epsom
Auckland 1023

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited (the “Bank'] was incorporated on o October 2008, It became a
regisiered bank on 31 March 2011,

For the purposes of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registered
Banks) Order 2014 (as amended), the Bank is currently the only entity within the Registared Bank's
Banking Group in New Zealand and accordingly the term “"Bank” has the same meaning as the Bank's
Banking Group throughout this Disclosure Statement

Ultimate Parent Bank and Ulhimate Halding Company
Mame: Bank of India
Address:  Star House C-g, G Block

Bandra Kurla Complex

Post Box Moo 8i3g

Bandra (East)

Mumbal 400051

india

The obligations of the Bank are guaranteed by its ultimate parent, Bank of |ndia {refer to section &
below for further details on the guarantee arrangement).There has been no change to the ultimate
parent bank or ulimate holding company since March 2oy

There are no khown regulations, legislation ar other restrictions of a legally enforceable nature which
may materially inhibit the legal ability of Bank of India to provide material financial support to Bank of
India {Mew Zealand) Limited,

Interests in 5% or more of vating securities of registered bank
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited is 100% owned by Bank of India Therefore Bank of India has the
ability to directly appoint 100% of the hoard of directors of Bank of India (New Zesland) Limited

Priarity of creditors’ claiims
As at 31 March 2018, a!l creditors of the Bank have equal priority of claims over the Bank's assets in
the event that the Bank is liquidated or ceases to trade:

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Guarantee Arrangements

The obligations of Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited are guaranteed under a deed of guarantese
dated 14 January 2011 given by its ultimate parent bank, Bank of Indis, in favour of the creditors of
Bank of Indla (New Zealand) Limited {"the Guarantee”)

Copies of the Guarantee are attached as Appendix 3,

The riame and address for service of the Guarantar is:
Bank of India, Star House, C-5, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Post Box No.8a3s, Bandra (East),
Murnbal 4o0051, India.

Bank of india is the Bank's ultimate parent and ultimate holding company. Bank of India s not a
member of the Banking Groug.

Details of the capital adequacy for the Bank of India as at 51 March 2015 are 25 follows

Capital 389,980,000,000 INR
Capital/Risk Weighted Exposures (%) 1073 %

The Bank of India has the following credit rating with respect to lts long term senior unsecured
obligations payable in any country of currency including ebligations payable In Mew Zealand In New
Zealand dollars;

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor's
Current Credit Rating: BBB- [Stablef/A-3

Or 29 September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outlooks <n the loang term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of India frem BBB- (negative) to BBB- (stable),

Pescriptions of credit rating scales are contained [n Appendix 1.

Details of Guarantesd Obligations

Bank of India unconditionally guarantees far the benefit of each creditor the due and punctual payment
by Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited of each and every aobligation (whether at stated
maturity, upen acceleration or otherwise) now or hereafter owing or to become awing by Bank of India
{New Zealand) Limited to the creditor during the term of the guarantee.

There are no limits on the amount of the ebligations guarantesd under the Guarantee. There are no
miaterial conditions applicable to the Guarantee other than nen-performance by the principal obligor.

There are no material iegislative or regulatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of
subordinating the claims under the Guarantee of any of the creditors of Bank of India (New Zealand)
Limited on the assets of the guarantor, to other claims on the guaranter, in & winding up of that
guarantar

The deed of guarantee does not have an expiry date

Bank of indla (Mew Zealand) Limnted
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

Guarantee Arrangements (continued)

Material Cross Guarantees
There are no material cross guarantees.

Directors

There have been two changes in the compesition of the Bank's hoard of directers since the most
recent full year Disclosure Statement dated 32 March 2014, Mr.Koteeswaran Rajaveloo who was
appointed to the board on 14 July 2014 resigned on 31 December 2014, Mr.Tarun Parbhu Kanji
resigned from the hoard on 13 June 2004,

At present, the Bank has the fallowing directors:
Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran, Chairman and Independent Director (2ppointed on 31 May 2013)
Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Independent Director (appainted on 31 May 2012}
Sameer Handa, Independent Director (appointed on 12 July 2013)
Sankara Narayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Director (appointed on 15 August 2013}
Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director (2ppointed on 13 December 2013)

- dudith Ann Whiteman, independent Director {appeinted on 4 March 2014)

Communications ta the directors should be addressed to:
12 Manukau Road, Epsom, Auckland 1023 , New Zealand

Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and Judith Ann Whiteman are
independent directors who are not employees of the Bank of India (New Zesland) Limited or of any
other entity able to control or significantly influence the Bank. The Chairman of the Board is therefore
independent.  Sanjays Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rabin Sockalingsm Rabindran and Judith Ann

Whiteman are residents in New Zealand,

Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director, (s resident in Mew Zealand.

Sankara Marayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Director, is resident in India.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limitad
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Qualifications and other directorships

Rabin Snck'allng.lm
Rabindran

Primary Occupation
Coemmercial Barristerand
internationallagal
consultant.

Sanjaya Singh Gaur
Primary Qccupation:
| Aszociate Professorat
Auckland University of
Technology

‘SameerHanida

'Primary. Qccupation
Chief Executive Officerat
| PattonLimited

Sankara Marayanan
|Anantharaman

| Radhamangalam
Primary Occupation
‘Banker

| Fi'anji't Kumar Amarendra
|dha

|Primary Occupation
lBanker

fJu:ftth Ann Whiteman
Primary Occupation
lIndependent consultant

cand Directar

Bank of Indla (Mew Zealand) Limited

AQualifications

Barmster-at-Law (Middle
Temple), )
Masterof Arts (Business
Law),

Azsoriate Mambaraf
Arbitrators’and
Mediatars' institute of NZ
Inc

Masterof Science(Hons,),
Bachelorol Engineenng
(Hons.),

Masterof Philosophym
Management,

Doctorof Philosophy in
Managemsnt.

Bacheloraf Enginaering
(B.E Mechanical),
Masterof Business
Administration (MBAY,

B.5¢, MA,

Master of Business
Administration (MBA),
Certified Associate of the
indian nstitute of Bankers
(CALLEY, Diplemann
Treasury Management
and Risk Management,
Diplomain Computer
Programming,

PG Diploma in Financial
Management,

PG Ciplamain Personne|
Menagement

Bachu!nraf'lscmnca.
Cetified Associate of the
Indian institute of Bankers
(C.A018)

BA- Accounting,
Instituteof

Chartered
AccoumtanteinAustralia,

JCPA Australia

- Auckland Transport, RegionalLand Transport

_if:rntaii:: uf other dfrgcmrshfp_s

Programme Public Mearings Panel (Charman),
Election Signs Bylaw Public Hearings Panel {Chairman),
New Zealand Liacning International Investment &
Development Co. Ltd,,

Solid Energy New Zealand Limited.

il

|Refrigerant Recovery NZ, SVM Holdings, Auckland,
Hotunul Investmentsitd. New Zealand, Patton Australia
Fte Lid, Brishane, Australia, Metjsk Pty Ltd,, Perth,
Australia, Air Conditioning & Refrigeration Pars CQ Pry
‘Ltd, Queensiand, Australia, Mcdelea Pty Ltd,, Mew Saold
Wales, Australia, Czeold Pry Ltd,, Gold Coast, Australla,
Patton Aero Co. Ltd, Bangkek, Thailand, Patton
‘Refrigeration India Pvi, Ltd,, India

CommunwealthFinance Carparation Limited, Hong
Keng

Mil

Pruh',r'ranan Eupp_ort Nur‘t‘hﬂ_'l"l{h‘ldependl.'nt Trustee),
Te Waipuna Puawal Mercy CQasis Lid
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The directors, their immediate relatives and close business associates have not entered into any
transactions with the Bank which sither have been entered into on terms other than those under the
ordinary course of business of the Bank, or which could otherwise be reasonably likely to influence
matenally the exercise of that director's duties.

The Board Audit Committee cansists of three directors of which twa are independent:

The chairman of the Beard Audit Committee is Ms. Judith Ann Whiteman. The other members of the
Board Audit Committee are Mr.Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and  Mr.Sankara Narayanan
Anatharaman Radhamangatam),

The responsible persons authorised to sign this Disclosure Statement on betalf of the Board in
accordance with section 8z of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1985 are Mr. Ratiin Sockalingam
Rabindran and Mr.Ranjitkurmar Amarendra Jha.

The Bank's code of conduct states: Members of core management are expected to devote their total
attention Lo the business interests of the Bank. They are prohibited from engaging in any activity that
interferes with theit performance or respansibiiities to the Bank or otherwise s in canfliict with or
prejudicial to the Bank. If any member of the core management considers investing in securities issued
by the Bank's customers, suppliers or competitors they should ensure that these investments do niot
compromise their responsibilities to the Bank, Many factors Including the size and nature of the
investment; their ability 1o influence the Bank's decsions; their access to confidential information of
the Bank or any other entity, and the nature of the relationship between the Bank and the counterparty
should be considered in determining whether a conflict exists. Additionally they should disclose ta the
Bank any interest which they have which may conflict with the business of the Bank, As a general rule,
the members of the core management should aveid conducting the Bank's business with a relative or
any other entity In which the relative is associated In any significant role If such a related party
transaction is unavoidable, they must fully disclose the nature of the transaction to the appropriate
authority,

Any dealings with a related party must be conducted in such 2 way that no preferential treatment s
given to that party. In the case of any other transaction or situation giving rise to conflicts of interests,
the appropriate authority should, after due deliberations, decide on its impact,

8 Auditor
The name and address of the auditar whose report [s referred to [n the Disclosure Statement:
KPMG
18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue
P.0,Box 1584 Shortland Strest
Auckland 140
Mew Zealand

g Conditions of Registration
Effective 30 March 2014, the Reserve Banik of New Zealand (RBNZ) lssued rovised conditions of
registration for the Bank. The conditions of registration has been amended to incorporate the changes
to put into effect restrictions on high loan-to-valuation residential mortgage lending, The conditions of
registrations also updated certain definitions in the canditions which become effective on 1 April 2014
under the Financial Reporting Act of 2013 A copy of the full revised conditions of registration effective
on or after 30 March 2014 can be found in Appendix 2

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited
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Conditions of Registration- continued
Effective 1 July 2014, the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand (RENZ) has made changes to the conditions
of registration for the Bank. The changes refer to:

® Revised version of "Capltal Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)* (B524), to  update
various defined terms relating to capital requirements for the residential mortgage lending.

* Revised version of "Framewaork for Restrictions an High LVR Residential Mortgsge Lending” (BS1g),
tu smend certaln defined terms in the loan-to-valuation ratio (LVR) restrictions applylng to our Bank
as a consequence of changes to BS2A and to add additional clauses on antl-avoidance.

* Mew versions of several handbook documents which need updating to take into account of the
caming inte force of the Financial Reparting Act 2013,

The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration over the accounting period,

Pending Proceedings or Arbitration

As at 33 March 2015, there Is one pending ellam which is under arbitration; however the
matter is not |ikely to have & material impacl on the Bank. No other legal proceedings or
arbitration concerning any member ¢f the Bank In Mew Zealand ar elsewhere exist that may
have a material effect on the Bank

Credit Ratings
Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited has the following genera! credit rating applicable to its long term
senior unsecured obligations payable in Mew Zeaiand in New Zealand dollars,

Rating Agency: Standatd and Poor's
Current Crediting Rating: BBB-/Stable A-3

On 29 September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outlooks on the long term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of India fram BBB- (negative) to BBE- (stabie)

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1
Cther material matters

There are ro other material matters relating to the business or affairs of the Bank that are not
disciosed in this Disclosure Statement.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Comprehensive income
For the year ended 33 March

Interest income
Interest expense

Met interest income
Other income

Tetal operating income

Operating expenses

Impairment |osses on loans and advances

Profit before tax
Taxation expanse

Net profit after taxation
Dividends Paid

Statement of Financal Position
Asal 1 March

Total assets

Total individually impaired assets

Total liabilities

Total shareholder's equity

2015
s000

4158
{g72)
3,186

358
ENRTY

(2,656)

{23)
Bfg

(247

618

2015

song

Bg 743

34,386

51,557

%000
3287
{462}
2,825
178
3,203
(2,448)
(gs)

(194]
%66

7014

2000

6g,082

18,243

30,333

2013
s000

2,523
(300)
2,323
187
1,410
(1,918)
{127)
s
{108)

7o

2013
soo0
64,953

14,470

50473

2012

5000

1,904
(30

1,874

3,806

(1,795)
(z1)
76

(58)

55.323

&126

50,203

2011

398

358

198

{338}

262

{za}
283

2011

50,408

2zy

59383

The amounts disclosed In this historical summary of financial statemnents have been taker fram the audited

financial statements of the Bank.

FPriof to the year ended 31 March 2013, the Bank was dormant and received dormant exemptions from preparing
financial statements, therefare there is no historical financial information disclosed for the pariods before the

year ended 33 March 2011,

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited



Directors” Statement
For the year anded 31 March 2615

Each director af the Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited, believes, after due enquiry, that 25 at the dateon which this
Disclosure Staternent is signed:

®  TheDisclosure Statement is not false or misleading; and

*  The Disclosure Statement coritains all information that is required by the Registered Bank Disclosure
Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended).

Furthermare, each director believes, after due enquiry that over the year ended 32 March 2015
®  The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration that applied during the year;
*  (redit exposure to connected persans were not contrary to the interests of the Bank, and

*  The Bank had systems in place to monitor and control adequately the material risks of the Bank including
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interestrate risk, currency risk, equity risk, liquidity risk, operational
risk and other business risks, and that those systems were baing properly applied,

Signed by Ranjitkurar Amarandra Jha and Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran as directors and responsible
personson behalf of all the directors: (The directors of the Bank were Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Sanjaya
Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran, Sankara Narayanan Anantharaman
Radhamangalam, Judith Ann Whiteman),

fe] G R b it

Ranjitkumar Amarendra lha Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran
Managing Director Chairman and Independent Director
15“' June zp15

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 33 March zo1s

Interast mcome
Interest expense

Mat interest incorme

Other income
Total operating income

Operating expenses
Impairment losses on loans and advances
Profit before income tax

Taxation expense
Net profit after tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive incoma

Statement of Changes in Equity
Forthe year ended 31 March 2015

Balance as at 1 April 2013

Total comprehensive Income for the period

Balance as at 32 March 2014 (Audited)

Balance as at 1 April 2014
Total comprehensive incorme for the year
Balance as at 32 March zo15 (Audited)

Mote

16

Share
Capital
3000
50,000
50,000

50,000

50,000

{Audited)
3i-March-2oa5
s000

4168
(g73)
3,186

358
3554

(2,658}

{23)
86g

(243}
618

618

Retained
Earnings
so00

473

466

839

939
618

3,557

{Audited)

31-March-2014
5000

3,287
(462}
2825

378
3,203

(2,448)

(g5}
Ebo

(294}
4BE

466

Total

soun
50,473

466
50,939

54,939

5%, 557

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 5o form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in

canjunction with the financial statements

11



Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March z015

Mote
ASSETS
Cash 7
Due from other financial institutions 1
Balance due from related parties 12
Loans and advances 5,16
GET Refundable
Other assats 10
Praperty and equiprment 9
Deferred tax assets 6
Total assets
Total Interest Earning and Discount Bearing Assets
LIABILITES
Balance due to related parties 12
Deposits and other borrowings 8
Other labidites
Current tax lability
Total liabilities
MET ASSETS
EQUITY
Share capital 13

Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity
Total Interest and Discount Bearing Liabilities

{Audited)
31-March-2o0ag

5000

105
18,350
3549
62,240

335
1,040
By
85,743
84,162

21,446

12,263

348
129

14,186

51,557

50,000

1.557
53,557

32,593

3i-March-zo1g

$o00

L3
16,140
2,742
48,564
45

116
1,149
Go
69,081

67,138

13,752
6,123
257

an

18242

59,539

50,000
539

59,939
16,961

Ma financial assets presented inthe statement of financial position have been pledged as calisteral for liabilities or contingent

liabilities.

The board of directors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited authorised these financisl statements for ssue on  15th June 2015

Signed for and on behalf of the board of directors

M m K‘f" Eev ' olisy,

The accompanying notes on pages 14 1o 56 form an integral part of these financial statemerits and should be read in conjunction

with the firancial statements.

12



Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2015

{Audited) tAudited)
31-March-zo1s  31-March-z014
Mote 5000 $a00
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest recelved 4134 3,565
Fees and other incame in 165
Operating expenses paid (2, 4B6) (2,278)
GST refund received Eo 164
Interest paid (924) (505)
Income tax paid fa5z2) (164)
Increase in advances to customers {13,693) (1B,168)
Met proceeds from related parties 8,887 7114
IncreasefiDecrease) in deposits from customers 6,140 {2,550)
Met cash flow from operating activities 14 2,303 (12,653)
| Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease In balances with other financial Institutions &, 500 16,500
Purchase of property and equipment (13) (Bga)
Met cash flow from investing activities 4,487 15,851
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares -
(Fayment to)fproceeds from to related partes ¥
Met cash flow used in financing activities - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,750 3,198
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the pericd 7,705 &gy SOT
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period L4495 71795
Cash and cash equivalent is made up of:
Cash 7 105 &5
Cash equivalent due from ather financial institutions at call 11 14,390 7,640
Total cash and cash equivalents 24,495 7:705

The accompanying notes an pages 14 16 50 form anintegral part of these finannial statements.and should be read in conjunctionwith
the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Complianca

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited (the “Bank"} is a profit-ariented entity [ncorporated under the Companies Act
1933 and domiciled in New Zealand. Its principal activity is the provision of banking services. Bank of India (New
Zealand) Limited was incorporated on g October 2008: It became a registered bank on 31 March 2011

The Bank is an FMC reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 (FMCA zo13). Its
financial statements comply with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 201y (FRA 2013) and the
requirements of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statement (New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order
2014 (as amended),

These financial statements have been prepared in sccordance with Generally Accented Accounting Practice in New
Zealand ("NZ GAAP"), as appropriate for profit-oriented entities, and the New Zealand equivalents to international
Financial Reporting Standards (" IFRS")". The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFR5},

The financial statemeants were authorised for issue by the directors on June 2015

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of histerical cost, except for certain financial instruments
which are ¢armed at falr value.

The functional and presentatien currency is New Zealand Dollars (N2D),

Accounting policies are selected and applied In & manner which ensures that the resulting finaneial information
satisties the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlylng transactions
or other events is raported,

Accounting judgments and major sources of estimation uncertalinty

In the application of the Bank's accounting policies, the directors are required to make |udgements; estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities that are nat readily apparent from other sources
The estimates and associsted assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on 8n ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
s revised If the revision affects only that period orin the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects bath current &nd future periods.

Allowance for impairment losses

Impairment allowance on each loan or receivable is evalusted based upon management’s judgments in applying the
atcounting poliey in1.14.

The determination of impairment aliowance required for loans which are deemed to be individually significant often
requires the use of considerable management judgement concerning such mattars as local economic conditions,
the financial performance of the counterparty and the value of any collateral held, for which there may nat be a
readily accessible market. The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may differ from the estimates
used by the management and cansequently may cause artual |losses to differ from the reported allowances.

Bankof India (New Zealand) Limited 14
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Standards and Interpretations effective in current periad

The following standards and interpretations have become mandatory for the Bank since the previcus balance date

NZ IAS 32 (Amendment)- Financial Instruments: Presentation- The amendment clarifies existing application issues
relating to the offsetting rules and reduces the level of diversity in current practice. It also clarifies the meaning of
“eurrently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and "simultaneous realisation and settlement®.

NZ IFRS 10,NZ IFRS 22 and NZ IFRS 27 (Amendment) -investment Entities- The amendment requires a gualifying
investment entity to account for investment controlled entities -as investments in associates and Joint ventures- at
fair value through profit or loss; the only exception wauld be subsidiaries that are considered an extention of the
Investment entity's investing activities. The consolidation exception is mandatory- nat gptional.

NZ IAS 36 (Amendment) - impairment of Assets - The amendment reverses the unintended requirement In IFRS 13
Fair Valoe Measurement to disciose the recoverable amount for every cash-generating unit to which significant
goodwill or indéfinite-lived mtangible assets have been allocated, Under the amendments, recoverable amounts is
required to be disclosed only when an Impairment loss has been recognized or reversad.

IFRIC 21 - Levies - The Standard provides quidance on the accounting of levies in accordance with the requirements
of 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The Standards provides insights regarding the
definition of levies, and the timing or recognition of provision related ta government impose levies,

The amendments to the standards did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial pasition  or
performance of the Bank

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted

IFRS 15 - Revenue from customers

NZ IFRS 15 replaces the following:

- IAS 18 Revenue

- |AS 22 Construction Contracts

- IFRIC 13 Customer Leyalty Programmies

- IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate

-IFRIC 28 Transfers of Assets from Customers

- 51C 31 Revenue — Barter Transactions involving Advertising Services

The new Standard has introduced a new model for the recognition of revenuye using which revenue is required to be
recognized. The model requires revenue to be recogmized based on the contractual implications of Individual
contracts. Moreover, consideration is required to be measured as the amount to which the Company expects to be
entitled, rather than fair value of consideration, It Is applicable for anausl periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016,

IFRS g —Financial instruments

The Standards has completely been issued by IASE for mplementation The Standards has specified how entity should
classify and measure financial assets and liabilities. The Standard has also issued & new impairment modet similar to
the model propesed in 2013, This Standard is applicable for annual periads beginning on or after 1 January 2017,

MNZIFRS g {2013) - Flnancial instruments
The Standard provides 3 more principle-based approach to hedge accounting and aligns hedge accounting mare closely with
risk management. The Standard is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Bank of India [Mew Zealand) Limited 15
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

Amendmerits ta Defined Benefit Plans: Emplovee Contributions {Amendment ta IAS 19)

The amendments Introduce & practical expedient for accounting for certain contributions fram employees or third
parties to defined benefit plaris: The amendments have made such contributions eligible for the practicsl expediant
Ifthey are:

- Set out In the formal terms of the plan

- Linked to service: and

- Independent of the number of years of service

When contributions are eligible for the practical expadient, a company |s perrnitted to recognize them as a reduction
of the service cost In the period in which the related service is rendered. This amengdment is applicable for periods
beginning an or after 1 July zo14,

Amendments to NZ IAS 8 and IAS 38

The Standard clarifies that it is not appropriate to have a depreclation or amartisation method which is hased on
revenue generated from an activity includes the use of an asset. It is not appropriate, berause & revenus- based
methed would reflect a pattern of econemic benefits gererated from operating the business (of which the ssset i
part), rather than econamic benefits consumed through use of the asset: The Standard is applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after 2 January zo16.

Disclosure initiative (Amendment to 1AS 1)

The |ASE has issued amendments over disclosure requirements under IAS 1, which emphasise on materiality basecl
disclosures to be provided in the financial statements, to avoid excessive disclpsures. Mareover, specific criteria has
been provided for the presentation of subtotals on the halance sheet. statement of profit or loss and OCI, with
additional reconciliation requirements for the statement of profit or loss and OCL

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

Effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, This standard includes amendments to a number of
Standards that are largely clarifications, including for example, amendments to NZ 1AS 14 Refated Party
Disclosures, which clarifies that a management entity providing key management personnel services to a reparting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity.

Annual improvemnents to IFRS 2011-2014 Cycle

The IASE has issued an exposure draft (ED), propasing amendments to the following four standards:

+ IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for <ale and discontinued operations

- IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures

1AS 1g Employee benefits

« IA5 34 Interim Financial Reporting

Except for the proposed amendments to IF5R 5, the proposals would apply retrospectively for annual perods beginning on
or after 1 lanuary 2016,

1.6 Foreign currency transactions

The Bank’s financial statements ara presented in the currency of the pririary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). The results and financial position of the Bank are expressed in New Zealand dollars
(MZD), which is the functional and presentation currericy of the Bank and sre rounded to the nearest thousand,

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, ansactions in currencies other than the Bark's functional currency
{foreign currencies) are racorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, manetary items denominated in farelgn currencles are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period,

Nan-manetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except when deferred in ather
ctomprehensive income a3 qualifying cash flow hedges.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited i6
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1.7 Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The profit and loss component of the statement of comprehensive income and ail tems in the statement of financial
position have been prepared so that all campanents are stated inclusive of GST except to the extent that G5T is
recoverable from the Inland Revenue

Comparatives

When the presentation or classification of itame is eh ANGed, comparative amounts are reclassified unless the
reclassification 1s impracticable. Thera have been no presentation or classification changes in the current period.

1.9 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will low to the Bank and that reven ue
<an be reliably measured. The principal sources of revenue are interest income and fees.

Interest

For financial instrumerits measured at amortised cost, the effective interest method s used te measure the interest
income or expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Far financial instruments measured at Fair valug, interest income or expense is recognised on an accryal basis on 3
yield to maturity basis.

Fees.are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Lending Fees
Fees and direct costs relating to loan origination, financing or restructuring and to loan commitments are deferred

and amortised to interest income over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. Lending fees not
directly related to the origination of a loan are recognised over the period of service,

Commission and other fees

Commissions or fees related to specific transactlons or events are recognised in the statement of comprehensiva
Income when the service is provided to the customer. When they are tharged for services provided over a period,
they are taken to other income on an accrusl basis as the service is provided

Other income

Dividend income |z recarded In the statement of comprehensive income when the Bank's right to receive the
dividend Is established, Realised and unrealised gains and losses from remeasurement of financial instruments at fair
value through profitor loss are included in other incame.

1.10 Finance costs
Interest expense is accrued on a time basis using the effective interest methad, All other finance costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.11 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period Taxable prafit differs from profit as
reported in the statement of comprehensive incame because it exciudes itemns of income or expense that are faxable
or deductible in other periods and it further excludes iterms that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's labifity
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the end of the
reparting period.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 17
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Notes to the financial statern ents

For the year ended 31 March 2015

1.22

1.13

Deferred tax

Deterred tax 15 recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financiai
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prefit, and are accounted for using
the batance sheet (ia bility methed. Deferred tax [labifities are generally recognised for all taxable tem parary
differences, and deferred tax assets are genetslly recognised for all deductible temporary differencas to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductibis temporary differances can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and llabilities are nat recognised If the temporary difference arises fram goodwlll or
from the tnitial recegnition (ather than in a business eombination) of other assets ang liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither tha taxahle profit nor the accounting prafit

Deferred tax assets arising from deductitile temporary differences associated with such Investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits agamst which to utilice
the benefits of the tem porary diffetences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assats is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be svailable to allow all o part of the asset to he
recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabiiities are measured a1 the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period In which the
liahiiity is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivaly
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would fallow from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the reporting date, ta recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and llabilitias,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 2 legally erforcesble right to set-off current tax assets
Bgainst current tax fiabilities and when they relate to income taxes levisd by the same taxation authority and the
Bank intends to settle its current tax #s5ets and liabilities on a net basis.

Cerment and deferred tax ara recognised as an expense or Income in profit or loss, except when they refate to items
recognised in other comprehensive Income ar directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly inequity,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents tomprises cash, cash at bank, cash in transit and call and shart deposits due from/to other
banks, all of which are used in the day-to-day cash management of the Bank

Statement of cash flows

The following terms are used in the statement of cash flows:
. operating activities are the principal revenya preduting activities of the Bank and other activities
that are not investing or financing activities;

- Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of lang-term assets and other Investmeants
not included in cash equivalents; and

= financing actlvities are attivities that result In changes |n the size and tomposition of the
contributed equity and borrowings of the Bank.

Certain cash flows have been netted |n order to provide more meaningful disclosures, as many cash flows are
received and disbursed on behalf of customers and refiect the activities of thosa customers,

Bank of India [New Zealand) Urmnited 18



Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

144

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified Into the following specified categorles: financial assets “at fair value through profit or
loss® (FYTPL), “held-to-maturity’ investmants, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) finariclal assets and ‘loans and recejvables'
The dlassification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recagnition. The Bank classifies all of its financial assets as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market are
tlassified as loans and receivables. Loans and recelvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
methaod, less any impairment. Interest ncome s recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Recognition of financial assets

Loans and receivables are recognised an settlement date and are recognised initially at Fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of 2ach reporting period, Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, a5 3 result of one or more events that occurred after the (njtial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been im pacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
. significant financlal difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
. It becoming probabie that the borrower will enter ban kruptcy or financial re-organisation,

For certain categaries of financial assets, such as lgans and sdvantes, assets that are assessad not o be impairatl
Individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a coliective basts, Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Bank's past experience of zollecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfalio past the average credit period of 6o days, as well a observable changes in
national or local economic conditians that correlate with default on recelvables

For financlal assets carried at arnortised cost; the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financia! asset’s original
effactive interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is red uced by the impairment loss directly for all finaricial assets with the

‘exception of losns and advances, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account,

When 2 loan or advance is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previausly written off are credited against the allowance account, Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss,

If, in 2 subsequent periad, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related abjectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the Impairment s
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 19
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1.34

i.15

Financial Assets (eentinued)
Asset Quality

Impaired assets consist of assets acquired through the enfarcement of security and other impaired assats.

Assets acquired through security enforcement are those assets (primarily real estate) atquired through actusl
foreclosure or in full or partial satisfaction of a debt. Dther Impaired assets refer to any credit exposure for which an
impairment loss is recognised in aceordance with NZ |A5 39 — Financial Instruments: Recogrnition and Measurement.

A go day past due asset is any loan which has not been operated by the borrower within its key terms for st least Gy
days and which is not an impaired asset. Although not ciassified as 'mpaired assets or past due assets, assets in
which he counter-party is In receivership, liguidatinn, bankruptcy, statutory management or any form of
administration are reported separately, These are classified as "other assats under administration”,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecogrises a financial assst only when the contractual rights to the cash flaws from the asset expire-or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially &l the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity, If
the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained interest n the assat and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay, IF the Bank retaine sudstantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financisl
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrewing for the
proceeds received

Financial Liabilities
Financial llabilities are classified 3 either financial fiabilities 'at FuTpp or ‘other financial liabilities:.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liabifity Is either held for trading or It is designated
asat FVTPL.

The Bank classifies all of its financial llabilities 33 other financial lisbilities. Other finaricial iabilitias are Initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs,

Other financial ilahiiitfe_s are subsequently measured st amortised cast using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective interest Dasis.

The Bank derecognises finanicial [ighilities when, and anly when, the Bank's abligations are discharged, cancelied or
they expire,

Bank of india (New Zealand] Limited 20
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1.16

1.17

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the |ease transfer substantially sl the risks and rewarde
of ownership to the lessee. All ather leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Bank at their fair value al the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The carrespanding liability to the lessar is
included in the statement of financial position as & finance lease obligation.

Lease payrments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the llability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or
loss In accordance with the Bank's general policy on financing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
fn the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as &n expense on a straight-line basis over the fease term, except where
another systematic basis ls more representative of the time pattern over which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are initially recorded as
a fiabiiity and are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Property and equipment

Al iterns of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the |tem. In the event that
settlemneant of all ar part of the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by discounting the amounts
payable In the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition. Subseguent costs are capitalised if it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the costs can be measured rellably, All other
maintenance costs are recognised as an expense as incurred

Depreciation Is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than freehold land, over their estimated vsaful
lives, using the straight-line method or the written down value method. The estimated useful lives, residual valyes
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The following depreciation rates have been used:

Office equipment 1w written down value method
Furniture 10% written down value method
Leasehold improvements 8% straight-line method
Computer equiprment 33.33% straight-line method

Impairment of non-financisl assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amaunt of the asset is estimated in order te determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where It Is not
possible to estimate the recoverghle amount of an individual asset, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonabie and consistent basis of allocation can be
Identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwlse they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasanable and consistent allocatian basis can be idarnitified,

Recaoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market asspssments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

Bank of india [New Zealand) Limited 2
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 32 March 2015

119 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Bank
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity Instruments are classified as either financial liabilitles or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.
Equity instruments
Anequity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its fiabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recorded at the proceeds received, netof direct issue costs.
Financial guarantee cantract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair valugs and, if not designated at FYTPL, are
subsequently measurad at the higher of the amount of the abligation under the contract, as determined in
accerdance with NZ |AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent: Assets; and the amount Initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition
palicies as set out at 1.9 above,

1.20 Provisions
Frovisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past avent, it
is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the abligation,
The ameunt recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
ailigation at the end of the reporting period taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
vbligation. Where a provision Is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the econamic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recoverad from a third
party, the recelvable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 77

If the recoverahie amount of an asset for cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amauiit, in which case the
impairment |oss 15 treated as & revaluation gecrease

Where an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amnunt of the asset (er cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable smount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impalrment loss bean recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit} in prior periods. A reversai of an impairment loss is recognised Immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount; in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as g
revaluation increase,
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1.2 Employes benefits

A provision is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of annual leave, long service leave and sick
leave when It is probable that settlemant will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably,

Provisions made In respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months are rmeasured at their

nominal values using the remuneration rate expecied Lo apply at the time of settlement. Provisions made in respect

of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of
the estimated future cash cutflows to be mads by the Bank in respect of servites provided by employess up to the

reporting date.
2 INTEREST
(Audited)
31-Mar-15
S000
Interest income
Loans and advances 3527
From other financial institutions 533
From related parties 58
Total interest income 4,158
Interest expense
Depesits by customers
230
Deposits by related parties
752
Total interest expense
972
3 OTHER INCOME
{Audited)
Ji-Mar-ig
y _ ) - 000
Banking and lending fee incoma 8o
Net commission revenus 9
Met foreign exchange gaing I3
Other revenue i
G5T recovered a5
Total other ineame 358

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

(Audited) |
3i-Mar-14

z,693
516
68
3,287

160

302

{Audited)
J1-Mar-1s
s000

41

&

114
&

213
378 |
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FA OPERATING EXPENSES

Cperating expenses include:

(Audited) (Audited)
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
£000 fo00
Auditors remuneration
- Audit of Disclosure Statements ] 75
- Review of Disclosure Statements 19 22
- Advisory fee -assistance with LVR pollcy B FATCA 0 z
Directors’ fees 66 61
Depreciation
Leasehold improvements BE &6
Computersquipmant 13 16
Office equipment 10 8
Furniture 11 10
Total depreciation 123 100
Other Expenses 852 g5
Employee benefit expenses 1,222 a5
Operating lease rental expenses. ) ) ) - EL T : 251
Total operating expenses 3656 | 2448 |
5 LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Audited) {Auditad)
31-March-zoas  32-March-zo014
000 000
Residential mortgages loans - :ﬁ._EIos 2B,520
Corporate loans 33,331 23,052
Other loans 360 226
Allowance for Impairment losses {256} (23}
Met loans and advances 62,240 48,564
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 9,512 5,211
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 52,328 43,353
Net loans and advances 62,240 48,564
Bank of Indla (New 2ealand) Limited 24
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(] TAXATION
Tax expense comprisas:
Current tax expense in respect of the current year
Ceferred tax expense relating to the origination and reversal of
temperary differences
Prior period adjusiment
Total tax expense
The tatal charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows
A Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense calculated at 28% {2014 268%)
Prier period adjustment
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax assetsf{liabilities) anse from the following:
Opening Charged
balance to profit
Foryear ended 32 March 2015 orloss
(Audited) 000 $000
Temporary differences
Praperty, plant & eguipment (4} 2
impairment allowance 65
DOther liabilities {1} 15
6o 24
- Dpening Charged
balance to profit
For year ended 32 March 2014, or loss
] {Audited) $000 so00
Temporary differences
Property, plant & equipment (z) (2)
Impairment allowance ig 26
Other llabilities 8 ]
45 15
Bank of India |New Zealand) Limited
-

(Audited)
31-March-zpas5
F000

266
{24)
47

Bog

247

Closing
balance

$000

{z)
7z
14
By,

Closing
balance

000

(a)
&5
{a)
6o

(Audited)
31-March-2014
2000

213
(27}

194

185

194

25
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7 CASH

Cash on hand
Total cash

B DEPOSITS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Retall depasits

Wholesale deposits

Total deposits

Amounts due for settlement within 12 months

Amounts due for settlement after 12 months
| Total deposits

9 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

.i:ﬂis-ﬂl;l old
Improvements
000

Costs
Balance as at 1 April 2013 (Unaudited) 506
Additions 556
Disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2044 (Audited) 1,062
Additions
Dispasals
Balance as at 32 March 2015 (Audited) 1,062
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April zo13 (Unaudited) 6z
Disposais
Degpreciation GE
Balance as at 31 March zox4, (Audited) 128
Disposals :
Depreciation 88
Balance as at 31 March zo1s (Audited) 216
Carrying amourit
Balance as at 31 March zo14 (Audited) 934
Balance as at 31 March 2015 (Audited) B4b

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited

(Audited)
31-March-2015
F000

105

105

(Audited) (Audited)

31-March- 1w ::L
2015 So00D Siad
12,263 6,123
12,263 Ba23
11,486 5917

777 06

12,263 6,123

Enmputer Office
Equipment Equipment

£000 S000
33 56
21 #6
(3)
57 102
- 10
59 i1z
20 8
{2} -
16 8
£ T 16
i3 10
&7 26
23 1
13 -1

tAudited)

31-March-2014

2000

65

Bs
Furniture  Total
5000 5000
105 706
30 Bs3
(4) (7
131 1,352
4 13
132 1,365
16 106
(1) (3
10 10D
25 203
11 122
36 325
06 1,149
g6 2,040
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
DTHER ASSETS
(Audited)  (Audited)
31-March-  31-March-
2015 1014
‘5000 F000
Prepayments 120 125
Interest recaivable 215 153
Total other assets 335 316
Amounts due for settlement within 13 months 135 316
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months = -
Total other assets 335 316

DUE FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

{Audited)  (Audited)
31-March-  31-March-

2015 2014,

so00 s000
Call deposits I 14,300 7,640
Short term depasits ' ho0n 8500
Total deposits 18,390 16,140

Armounts due from other financial institutions are due for settlement within 12 months of balance
date

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

The Bank is whally owned by the Bank of India, a bank incorporated |n India. The Bank of India Is also
the Bank's ultimate parent. Related parties include other branches and subsidiaries of Bank of India
and other parties under comman control. All related party transactions are condutted on nomal
cammercial terms and canditions. No related party debts have been written off or fargiven during the
year,

Key management personnel

Key management persannel are defined as being the Directors and Senior Management of the Bank.
The information relating to the key management personnel disclosed includes transactions with those
individuals, their close family members and their controlied entitiss.

(Audited) {Audited)

| 31-March- 31-March-

2015 2014

£000 $000

Salary and other short term benefite 816 510

Dwring the period, the Bank accepted deposits from the key management personnel, These were enterad
into the normal course of the business and are atinterest rates prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with-other parties.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)

Guarantee from parent

The obligations of the Bank are guaranteed under a deed of guarantee dated 14 January 2011 given by
its ultimate parent, Bank of lndia, In favour of the creditors of Bank of Indis (New Zealand) Limited.
There are no material legislative or requlatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of
subordinating the claims under the Guarantee of any of the creditors of Bank of India (Mew Zealand)
Limited on the assets of the guarantor, to other claims on the guarantor, in @ winding up of that

guarantor

Transactions | balances with related parties

Transactions with related parties
Interest income
Bank of India {branches/subsidiaries)

Other related parties

Interest expense

Bank of India (branchesisubsidisries )

Other related parties

Met depositf{withdrawals) in related parties

MNet deposit/{withdrawals) by related parties

Balances with related parties
Deposits with
Bank of india (hranches/subsidiaries)

Other related parties

Deposits from

Bank of India {branches/subsidiaries )
Other related parties

Deposits with related parties

Amounts due for settlement within 12 months

Amounts due for settlement after 22 months
Total Deposits with related parties
Deposits from related parties

Amounts due for settlement within 1z menths

Amounts due for settlement after 12 months
Total Deposits from related parties

SHARE CAPITAL

50,000,010 fully paid ordinary shares

{Audited)
31-March-2015
5000

98

752
Bob

8,783

3,549

30
2,716

3549

3,549

2,031
15,415
22445

{Audited)
31-March-2015
$000

S0, 000

{Audited)
3Ji-March-zox14
sooo

68

3032
(423}
6405

742

157
11,595

2,742
2,752

4,004
7738
11,752

{Audited)
31-March-zo1y
000

50,000

The Bank issued 1o ordinary shares on g October 2008 and 50,000,000 ordinary shares on 7 February 2oaz. All
ordinary shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and any profits on winding up. Shares do

not have a par value,

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited
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RECONCILITIATION OF NET PROFIT TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Mon-cash items:

Impairment loss recognised on leans and advances
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Deferred tax assets

Movements in working capital:

Increase in foans and advances
{IncreaselDecrease in interest receivable
Increase/{Decrease ) in depasits from eustomers
Increase in balances due (o related parties
{Increase)f Decrease in prepayments
{increase)fDecrease in G5 refundable

Increase in current tax
liability
Increase/{Decrease) in trade and other payables

Met cash from operating activities

CAPITAL ADEQUALY

{Audited) (Audited)
31-March-ze15  31-March-zo1g
5000 5000

618 466

23 g5

122 100

{24) {as)
(13,699) {1B,268)
[24) 278

6,140 {z.550)
8,887 71314

5 -

45 L&5)

115 46

91 18

2,303 (22,653)

The Fallowing capital adeguacy information is disclosed inrelation to the Bank and is derived In accardance with
the conditions of registration relating to capital adequacy. For the purpose of the conditions of registration,
capital requirements and ratios are calculated In accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Capital
Adeguacy Framework (BSzA) dated September 2013 and i3 disclosed under the Basel Il framework in
accordance with Schedule g of the Order. The information for the comparative period is calculated based on the

Basel || framewark

Capital and Capital ratios.

Tier 1 capital

Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET2") Capital

issued and fully paid up ordinary share capital

Retained earnings

Less deductions from CET1 capiral
Deferred tax assers

Total Comnmon Equity Tier 2 Capital

Additional Tier 2 ("AT1") capital

Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital

Total capital

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited

Unaudited
31-Mar-1g
S000

£0,000

1,557

(84)
51,473

51,473

51,473
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15  CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

{Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Capital ratios and solo capital adequacy 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14,
000 s000
Cornmon equity Tler 1 capital ratio 81 G4
Tier 1 capital ratio 8% a4%
Total capital ratio B1% L%

{’-.;'nau-:l-it\!di (Unaudited)

Minimum ratio requiremeant 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-1g,
000 £000
| Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio 4 4%
Tier 1 capital ratio 6% 6%
Total capital ratio B 8%

.;[Ui!':lau-diteaj. : {Unaud.ltedj

Buffer ratio 31-Mar-ig F1-Mar-1g
£000 £000

Buffer ratio 73% B6%

Butfer ratio requirement 2.5% 2.5%

The Bank has 50,000,020 fully paid ordinary shares (tier one capital) issued at NZs1 per share. Bank of indiais
the sole shareholder. Each share confers on the holder the right to:

* onevote on apoll at a meeting of the Bank on any resalution
*  therightto equal share in dividends authorised by the board

*  theright to an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Bank,
* There is no capital instrument eligible for phase out:

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited n
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

Credit Risk

The Bank's credit risk exposure is derived in accordance with the Reserve Bank document ‘Capital adequacy
framework (Standardised Approach) (BS2A) dated September 2013,

On Balance Sheet exposures as at
31 March 2015

Cash and gold bullion
Banks

Residential mortgages not past due; LVR upto 8o%
LVR >80% B upto 5o
LVR exceeds ao%h
Corporate Loans

Other assets

| Total on balance sheet exposure

Off Balance Sheet Total Credit

eXpOosuUres asat i e conversion

March 2015 P factor
000

Other commitments

where original maturity

is more than one year 4,317 so¥h

Total off balance sheet

o A 4317

Credit risk mitigation

Total
eXposure
after credit
risk
mitigation

S000

Unaudited
108
18,795

344
24,238
4,567

33,331
1,563

85,743

Credit
equivalent
amount

$ooo

4,159

2253

. Risk
Risk :
weight weighted
EXposure
sooo
Unaudited Unaudited
o -
2036 3759
golh o
100 ERTTA
359 B,483
sa%h 285
5% :
100% 33an
100% 1,563
52,564
Average Risk
risk weighted
weight exposure
000
65 1,403
1.403

Minimum
Pillar 2
capital

requirement

sooo
Unaudited

301

a
251
B7g
183

2,666
125

4,205

Minimum
Pillar a
capital

requirement

S000

112

113

Mo on or off-balance sheet exposures are covered by eligible collateral, guarantees or credit derlvatives

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited
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15 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (cantinued)

Total capital requirements

As at 31 March zo15 (Unaudited)
Total credit risk = equity risk
Operational risk

Market risk

Total

_Market risk end of period capital charges

As at 331 March zoas (Unaudited)
Interest rate risk

Foreign currency risk

Equity risk

Total

Market risk peak end-of-day capital charges

For period ended 331 March 2025( Unaudited)

Interast rate risk
Fareign currency risk
Equity risk

' Total

Risk

weighted

Total exposure  exposure
aftercredit risk  or implied
mitigation risk
waighted

expostre

£000 5000

go,obo 53,967
WA 6,255
NA 3,260
90,060 63,482

Implied
risk
Weighted
Exposure

5000

3y
143

3,260

implied risk
Weighted

Exposure
5000

3
143

3,260

Capital
requirement

5000

i 317
Soo
F10]

5.078

Aggregate
Capital
Charge

s000

250

il

261

Aggregate
Capital
Charge

foo0

250
13

261

The above capital charges are derived in accordance with the Conditions of Registration relating to
capital adequacy and the Reserve Bank document entitled “Capital Adequacy Framewark”
(Standardised Approach) {(BS2A) dated September zo13.

Peak end-of-day capital charges are calculated using the Bank's shareholders’ equity at the end of

the year.

Bank of india {New Zealand) Limited
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)
Operational risk

Implied Total
risk operational
Weighted risk capital
Exposure requirement

{Unauvdited) £000 $000
For period ended 31 March 2015 Unaudited Unaudited
Operational risk 6,255 500

Res:Cential mortgage by losn-to-valustion ratio (AVR) |
LVR range Doesnot  Exceeds Bo% Exceeds Total
exceed Bo%  and not 9ol gobh

. Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Value of exposures as at 32 March 2015

On-balance shest 24,238 4567 - 28, 8osg
Off-balance sheet 2,346 - - 2,346
Total

26,584 4,567 = 31,15

Capital requirements for other material risks
The other material risks that the Bank has identified are described below:
Reputation Risk: The risk of potential damage to the Bank from a deterioration of reputation.

Transfer Risk: The risk that funds in foreign currencies cannot be transferred out of a country. The risk relates to
specific explicit government restrictions or simply depleted foreign exchange funds in the non-industrial countries
of Africa, Asia, Latin America and Central and Eastern Europe,

Strategic | Business Risks: Current and prospective impact on eamings or capital arising from adverse business
declsions, improper implermentation of decisions; or lack of responsivenass to industry changes.

Tax Risk: Risk arising from adverse changes in relevant taxation laws, failure to correctly identify implications of
existing taxation laws or breaches of 1ax laws.

Legal Risk: Risk arising fram legal proceedings or fallure to legally enforce a contractual arrangement relating to
the Bank’s activities.

The Bank has reviewed these other risks and do not believe any individual risk a5 being material and requlring a
capital allocation, The Bank will review this allecation methodology every reporting period In line with industry
practice as this area evolves over time

The Bank measures the prirary risks and its overall minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio In accordance with the
Reserve Bank document entitled "Capital Adequacy Framewark” [Standardised Approach) (BS2A) dated
September zox3, The Bank's approach 1o assess capital adequacy recognises the importance of using both
quantitative techniques and gualitative assessment /management judgement in arriving at a final measure of risk.
As part of its ongaing capital planning and budgeting processes management also develops a range of scenarios
35 a basis for identifying plausible severe loss events and chianges in market conditions and measures | guantifies
the potential financial impacts (direct and indirect) on the Bank's capital adequacy for the foreseeable future [2-3
YEBaErs),

Bank of Indla (New Zealand| Limited 33
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

Senior managernent of the Bank is responsible for the capital planning and budgeting process and is required to

perferm ongoing calculation of Capital Adequacy Ratio and report this to the Board of Directors on a regular

Basis. The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible to monitor the Capital Adequacy Ratio on a requfar basis.

Capital ratios of the ultimate parent bank

CET 1 capital ratio
Tier one capital ratio
Total capital ratio

The ultimate parent bank is Bank of India, damiciled in India. Figures are taken from Bank of India’s Financial Results
for the period ended 31 March 2015 from its website. The above ratios are derived In accordance with the Capital

Asat

31 March zo1g
7.18%

B.%

10.73%

Asat

JaMarch zo1s

6.84%
7.59%
10,769

Adequacy Framework (Basel ) as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines effective 31 March 2008,

Bank of India is required by the RBI to hold minimum capital at least egual to that specified under the Basel ||
{standardised) approach. At balance date {l.e. 32 March zo1s) Bank of India was in compliance with the requirements

imposed

Bank of India has published pillar three disclosure infarmation an the implementation of the Basel |l capital adequacy

framewark onits website and can be found at hitp:lwaw bankafindia coin.

ASSET QUALITY

Thie Bank has no past due and impaired assets, individually impaired assets, and individual cred it mpairment

allowances as at 31 Marchk 2oag {2014 shil).

Allowance for impairment losses

As at 31 March 2015 (Audited)

Collectively assessed provisions
Balance al 1 April 2004

Charge to statement of comprehensive income.

Other movements

Balance at 31 March 2015

Individually assessed provisions

Balance at 1 April 2014

Charge to statement of comprehensive income
Other movements

Balance at 31 March 2015
Total allowance for impairment losses

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited

Residential
mortgage
loans

5000

115

On balance
sheet
corporate
EXpOsUres

So000

127
14

Ctheron
balance
sheet
eXpOsSuUres

5000

Total

$000

233
3

256

256
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16 _ _.ﬂS_‘:'-E_T DUALITV‘{_I: q_nt_iln ue d)

Residential On balance Otheron Tatal
mortgage loans sheet halance
corporate sheet
eXpOsSUres  exposures
000 $000 S000 S000
As at 32 March zoa (Audited)
Collectively assessed provisions
Balance at 1 April 2013 82 [+ - 138
Charge to statement of comprehensive income 24 75 ag
Other movements - - -
Balance at 31 March 2014 106 127 - 33
Individually assessed provisions
Balance at 1 April zo13 - - -
Charge to statement of comprehensive income - - -
Other movements - £ 2 N
Balance at 31 March zo14 - - -
Total allowance for impairment losses 106 137 3 233
impairment losses an loans and advarices
On balance Other on
Residential sheet balance wokal
martgage loans carporate sheet
BNPOSUFES  BXPOSUres
E000 £000 000 so00
Collectively assessed provisions g 15 - 23
Individually assessed pravisions . . .
Other mavements - - - p
Balance at 31 March 2015 g 14 - 23
Collectively assassed provisions 24 71 - g5
Individually assessed provisions - - -
Other movements - - -
Balance at 31 March 2014 24 71 - a5

The Bank assesses on a monthly basis whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for loans and
advances, If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed |oans and
advances, loans and advances with similar credit risk characteristics are grouped and assessed collectively for

impairment.

Toassess impairment on a collective basis, loans and advances are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics. Loans which are individually impaired, are excluded from the assessment of collectlve provision, The
assessment for collective impairmant is based on the all avallable and relevant infarmiation, which |n case of the Bank is a

peer group experience of loan iosses,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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16  ASSET QUALITY {continued)

¥ thare |5 objective evidence that an impairment on loans and advances has been incurred, the amount of the charge is
measured as the difference between the loans and advances' carrying amount and thea present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the loans and advances' onginal effective interest rate;

The Bank does not have any financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss as at and for the period

ended 31 March 2015 (2014 $nil), As such, there were no ch anges in fair value attributable to changes In credit
risks that have been charged 1o the statemeant of comprehensive income for the periad ended 33 March 2015 (2014: snil)

There was no aggregate amount of undrawn balances on lending commitments to counterparties for whom drawn balances
are classified asindividually impaired as at and for the period ended 31 March zo15 {2014 snll),

There were no other assets under administration as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2014: $nil),
17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Loans and Fir?a_nﬁal |

As at 31 March zo15 (Audited) receivables am:?t?:alf:lisu:: toul |
5000 So00 $000
Assets
Cash 104 . 105
Balance due from related parties 3,549 - 3545
Due from other financial Institutions 18,300 - 28, 350
Loans and advances 62,240 - 62,240
Interest receivabie 215 - 215
Total financial assets B4, 499 - 84,499
Mon-financial assets 1, 2k 1,244
Total assets 85,743 85,743
Liabilities
Balance due to related parties - 21,446 21,446
Depasits and ather borrowings - 12,2673 12,263
Cither llabilities - 348 348
Total financial liabilities - 34,057 34,057
Mon-financial labilities - 129 19
Total liabilities : 34,186 344386 |
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 36
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i7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contiriued)
Categories of financial instruments

Loansand  Financial liabilities

As at 32 March 2014 (Audited) recelvables at amaortised cost Yotal
sooo $000 lDiEID
Assets
Cash 65 : 65
‘Batance due from related parties 2,742 = 2,742
Due from other financial institutions 16,140 - 16,140
Loans and advances 48,564 - 48,564
Interest receivable 191 - 151
Total financial assets 67,702 - b7,702
Non-financial assets 1,379 1,379
Total assets 69,081 69,081
Liabilities
Balance dus to related parties = 11,752 11,752
Deposits and other borrowings - 6,123 5123
Other liabilities . a5y 257
Total financial liabilities - 18,232 18,3132 I
Non-financial llabilities - 1<} 10
Total liabilities . 18,142 18,242 I

Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying  Estimated

As at 31 March 2015 (Audited) Amounts Fair Value
N s000 sooo
Financial assets
Cash 105 105
Balance due from relsted parties 3549 3,549
Due from ather financial institutlons 18,390 18,350
l.oans and advances 62,240 62,295
Interest recaivable 215 218
Total financial assets B4,499 84,554

Financial liabilities

Balance due to related partles 23,446 231,808
Deposits and other borrowings 12,263 12,395
Other liabilities 148 348
Total financial liabilities 34,057 34,553

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Carrying Estimated
As at 31 March 2014 (Audited) Amounts Fair Value
5000 s000
Financial assets
Cash 6g 65
Balance due from related parties 2,741 2741
Due from other financial institutions 16,240 15,957
Loans and advances 48,564 48,557
Interest recceivable 191 151
Total financial assets 67,702 67,911
Financial liabilities
Balance due to related parties 13,753 11,519
Deposits and other borrowings 6,123 6,086
Other llabilities 257 257
Total financial liabilities 18,2132 17,862

Fair value estimation

CQuoted market prices, when available, are used as the-measure of Tair values for financial instruments, However, for
some of the Bank's financial instruments, quoted market prices do not exist, For such financial instruments, fair values
presented are estimates derived using present value or other market accepted valuation technigues,

These technigues Invalve uncertainties and are affectad by the assumptions ised and |udgemants made regarding risk
charactenstics of various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss
expenience and other factors. Changes in assumptions could significantly affact these estimates and the resufting fair
values,

The fair value estimates were determined by application of the methods and assumptions described below.

Cash
For cash assets, Lhe carrying amount is equivalent to the fair value as they are highly liquid. For short term liquid
assets, estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices.

Balance due from other financial institutions and related parties
These are call and short term deposits with other financial institutions which are relatively liguld and therefore
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value.

Advances to customers

For variable rate loans and advances, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For fixed rale loans
and advances, fair values have been estimated vsing a discounted cash flow model with reference to market interest
rates, prepayment rates and rates of esumated credit losses

Other financial assets
Included In this category are jnterest receivables and other short term recaivables. For these balances the carrying
value s considered to approximate the fair values, as they are short term n nature or are recelvable on'demand.

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Deposits by customers and other related parties

For fixed term deposits by custamers, fair values have been estima
market interest rates. For other deposits by customers,

Other financial liabilities

ted using a discounted cash flow model with reference to
the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Other financial liabilities are generally short-term and are expected to be settled withinone year, Therefore, the carrying

amount is equlvalent 1o fair value.

The foliowing table provides an analysis of financial instruments not measured at fair value. The linsndal instruments are

grouped into Level 1 to 3 based an the degree to which the falr value is observable.
Levels Quoted market price

Level 1 inputs are guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

measurement date.

Levalz Valuation technigue using observabie inputs

liabilities that the entity can access at the

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted markat prices included within Level 1 that are sbservabie far the asset ar liability,

efther directly or indirecthy,

Level 3 Valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued using valuation tech nigues where one or rmorea significant inputs are unobservable

As at 31 March 2015
Loans and receivabie

Due from other financial institutions

Due from related parties

Loans and advances
Other financial llabilities

Balance due to related partieg
Deposits and other borrowings

As at 31 March 2014(Restated)
Loans and receivable

Due from ather financial institutions

Due from related parties
Loans and advances

Other financial liabilities
Balance due to related parties
Deposits and other barrowings

Lauﬂ%. 1
2000

Level 1
5000

*The presentation of this disclosure is :hanged this year,

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited

Levelz
000

18,350
1,549

21,808
12,395
Level 2

§o008

15,957
2,743

11,519
£,0860

Level 3 Total
s000 s000

- 18,350
- 3,549
62,295 62,205

- 21,808

3 12,395
Level 3 Total
s000 sao0

E 15,557
- 2,761
48,957 48,957

E 13,514
- 6,086

39
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 32 March 2015

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuad)

Transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy are determined at the end of the reparting period. There have been no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year. There have also been no transfers intefout of Level 3 during the
period ended 33 March zoas (zo1g:snil)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising as a result of the diminution In credit quality of the borrower or counterparty and
the risk thal the borrower or counterparty will defauit on contractus! repayments under and advance.

As at 31 March 2015, the Bank deposited its funds with financial institutions with a eredit rating from Standard &
Poors' of AA- {2014; AA-) ar with related parties. The Bank has established a Credit Committee that specifcally
oversees and co-ordinates the Bank's credit risk managemant Functions. The Credit Committee has primary
responsipliity for identifying, measuring and monitoring the Bank's exposure to credit risk. The Credit Committee
reports to the Board on credit risk on a quarterly basis

RISK MANAGEMENT

The credit policy has been set by the Credit Committes and approved by the Board. Bank officers sesk Credit
Committee approval betore deviating from any lending guideline or pelicy. Credit approval avthorities have been
delegated by the Board to senior executives of the Bank, Compliance with these policies is monitored by the Credit
Committee and reported to the Board,

Credit riating modals

The Bank assesses risk at the time of appraisal of the loan using its rating model for various types of borrowers, A
business portfolio is assessed on & risk rated basis and a retall portfalic on a scoring basis.

Cradit exposure ceilings

Asa means of avoiding concentration of credit risk, the Bank sets ceilings in relation to singlejgroup borrowers,
unsecured borrowers and with respect to each industry sector

Market risk

Market risk ts the nsk that exposure to price movements in financial instruments, atising a5 a result of changes in
market variables, will result in a foss suffered by the Bank. The Bank has established a Risk Management Committes
that 15 responsible for, among other things, identifying, measuring and manitoring the Bank's exposure to market nsk.
The Rigk Management Committes meets on a quarterly basis and recejves guidance and technical support from staff
inthe Bank of india head office. The relevant process for each category of market risk Is as follows;

Interest rate risk

The Bank undertakes interest rate sensitivity gap analysis on a quarterly basis on a contractual basis as a means of
monitoring interest rate risk. Short term interest rate risk s calculated using the Net Interest Earnings at Risk tool.

Fereign exchange risk

The Bank undértakes analysis on materal open fereign exchange positions through ensuring forelgn exchange
deposits are matthed by corresponding foreign exchange balances beld with financial institutions as 2 means to
monitor foreign exchange risk.

Equity risk

The Bank does not have any squity risk,

Bark of India (New Zealand) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liguidity nsk
Liguidity risk oceurs when an institution s unable to fulfil its commitmeant in the time whan the commitment falls due,

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for identifying, measuring and monitoring liguidity risk effecting the
Bank.

The Bank monitors its one-week and one-month mismatch ratios and its core funding ratio on a daily basis to ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements.

Operationil risk

Operational risk |s the risk of oss resulting from inadequate or falled internal processes, people and systems or from
extarnal events.

The Bank's senior management |s responsible for implementing the operational risk management initiatives
formulated by the Board. The Bank's senior management meets monthly to analyse changes or trends n respects of
operational risk. The Bank's sentor management may make recommendations to the Board on strategies that may
imprave the Bank's aperational risk profile,

Capital adequacy

The Board and semior management underake capital planning, in accordance with the Bank's internal capital
adequacy assessment policy, As part of the capital planning process, the Board reviews:

. The current capital requirements of the Bank;
. The targeted and sustainahble capltal in terms of business strategy and risk appetite; and
- Future capital planning (with a threg year outlook).

The capital plan is revised on an annual basis or more regularly if necessary, to meet the Bank's obligations under Basel
Iil. For further information, see Mote 15,

Reviews of Bank's risk management systems

There have been no reviews conducted in respect of the Bank's risk management systems since inauguration

Internal avdit function

The Bank utilises an internal audit function as a control measure to enable senior management of the Bank to monitor
and review the Bank on an ongoing basrs: The internal audit function of the Bank s part of the Bank of Indla's palicy 10
ensure that all Bank of India branches and subsidiaries nave appropriate systems and procedures in place and comply
with all applicable hame and host country regulations, Specifically, the Bank is subject to a monthly compliance review
that is undertaken by senior management of the Bank. The purpose of this review is to check constant and concurrent
compliance with all systerns and procadures by the 3ank, The Bank of India's head office internal audit team has not
reviewed the Bank for this financial year as part of its overseas subsidiaries rotation of internal audits

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015
RISK MAMAGEMENT (continued)

Interest repricing

The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the financial instruments at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity datas,

As at 31 March 2015
(Audited)

Financial assets

Cash

Balance due from related parties
Cue fram other financial
institutions

Loans and advances

Interest Receivable

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Balance due to related parties
Leposits and other borrowings

Other habilities
Total financial Ii_a_t_hil!_tles_

Interest repricing

As at 31 March 2014
(Audited)

Financial assets

Cash

Balance due from related
parties

Due from other financial
Institutions

Loans and advances
Interest receivable

Total financial assets
Financial Liabilities

Balance due to refated parties
Peposits and other
borrowings

Other liabilities

Total financial liabifities

Bank of India (New Zealand) Umited

Total

£000

105
3,545

18,350
62,240

215
By, 499

21,446
12,263

348
34,057

Total

63
3,742

16,140

68,564
1491

67,702

154,753

6,123
257
18132

Uptog
moniths

FO00

256

14, 264
53,659

68,179

1,326
8,549

9,875

Uptog
months

S000

219

14,146
38,732

54037

g
3338

6, 53-!]

Overy
months
and up to
& months

000

1,71

&, 000

2,18

B,429

475
316

731
D.\.rzr 3
manths
and up
tob

months
S000

1,273

1,272
408
247

Bsg

Ower b
months
antd up
to 1 year

$000

Li3s

4,239

5673

1,866

1,866

Cverd
months
and up to
1year

5000

Owvera
yearand
uptoz
years

3000

1,880

1,880

b,227
645

&,873
Overa

year ant
uptoz

years

$000

g, 282

5,282

3,743

1,743

Owerz
years

Overa
years

$000

5995

207

6,202

Man -
[nterest-
bearing

5000

105
148

126
{256)
215
338

230
8B&

348
1,464

Men -
interest-
bearing

$000
65
47
494
(233)

101
564

157

57
1,372
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18 RISK MANAGEMENT(continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The table below summarize the post-tax sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to change ininterest rate risk. The market valus
of the assets and liabilities were used as the basis for the amalysis and financial medeliing was used to determine the impact en those

valges of changes in each rigk scenarin.

As at 31 March 2015 :f:;f:g
tAudited)
lqﬁﬂ
Financial assets
Cash 105
Balance due from related parties 1,549
Due from ather financial institutions 18,300
Loans and advances 62,240
Interest receivabie 215
Total financial assets By, 495
Financial liabilities
Balance due toreiated parties 21,446
Depasits and ather borrowings 13,263
Other lisbilities 348
Total financial liabilities 34,057
Asat 31 March 2014, J'Tm‘::a :
(Audited)
£000

Financial assets

Cash 14

Balance due from related parties 2,43
Due from cther financial institwtions 16,260
Loans and advances 48,564
interest recevable g1
Total financial assets 67,702

Financial llabilities

Balance due to refated parties 1,752
Ceposits and ather borrowings 6,123
Other liabilities 257
Total financial linbilities 18,132
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

18 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The table below summarises the Bank's open fareign currency position,

As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
(UsD) (INR) {UsD) (INR)
s'ooo t'000 £'000 s'oog
NZD NZD MNZD MNZD
Equivalent  Eguivalent Equivalent Equivaleni
Financial assets
Cash 10 - 12 |
Balance due from related parties 3,479 7o 2,743
Due frorm other financial institutions (] = 77
Interest recelvable 34 = 27
Total financial assets 3,585 70 3,059
Financial llabilities
Balance due ta related parties - - - o
Deposits and other borrowings 3,508 - 3,020
Interest payable ' - z o
Total financial liabilities 3,512 - 3,022 2
MNet Open Position: 73 70 37 (2)

The table below summarises the post-tax sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates,

0% sa0% -16% +10%
Carrying Amounts Profit or Profit or ; "
As at 31 March zoa5 ye Loss Equity Equity
Sﬂ.ﬂﬂ $000 l_ﬂl'.‘l_ﬂ 5000 E000 |
Financial assets
Net Open Position 143 {10} 10 fawo] 30
-10% +ao¥
Carrying Amounts Profit or Profitor _ 10% “l?%
As at3a March 2014 frie fran Equity  Equity
090G _ Sooo 000 Soo0 5000
Financial assets
| Net Open Position 36 {3 3 3 3]
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 44



Notes to the financial statements
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liguidity risk
The table below summarises the cash flows receivable and payabla by the Bank under non-derivative financial assets
and llabitities by remaining contractual maturities as al 31 March 2015 The amounts disclosed are contractual

undiscounted cash flows and is not disclosed based on expected cash flows, The liquid assets are for the purpose of
managing liquidity,

) Upto3 Flosz 1tos Qvers On demand Total
As at 31 March 2015 [Audited) months  months years years
5000 5000 $000 soo0o so00 $000
Assets
Cash - - - - 105 105
Balance due fram related parties 457 1,047 0 v 148 3.b52
Due from other financial institutions Ba1z0 4,078 - - 6,350 18,548
Advances to customers 3852 13,566 25264 46,234 3467 91,383
Interast receivable 215 = - - . 215
Total financial assets 11,648 20,692 25,264 46,234 10,070 113,903
Liabilities
Balance due 1o related parties 1,370 451 22,164 - 230 34,255
Deposits and other borrowings 6,555 2,377 709 - 2,937 12,478
Other |labilitias 348 - - - - 348
Tatal financial liabilities 8,273 2,768 22,873 - 3,167 37,081
Met non-derivative cash flows 3,37 17,923 2,391 46,234 6,903 76,822
Off Balance sheet cash flows
Laan commitments - - - = 4,317 4,317
Total . - - - 4,317 4,317
Net cash flows 3371 17,823 3,391 46,234 2,586 | 72,505
Liquidity risk : _
. Ypto3.~ atesz vinE Overs o demand Total
As at 31 March 2014 (Audited) menths  months years years
000 000 5000 5000 5000 5000
Assets
Cash . . - - 65 b
Balance due from related parties 220 2,589 - - 49 z,828
Due from other financial institutions 7,068 1,570 = . 7,840 16,275
Loans and advances 1,156 7,616 15,134 35,317 1,875 71,102
Interest recevable 151 - - - * 181
Total financial assets _ 8,632 13,745 25334 35317 9633 90461
Liabilities
Balance due to related parties - 919 8743 . 157 1z8ag
Deposits and other borrowings z,580 1,8g8 222 - 1,508 6,208
Other Habilities - u e v 258 258
Total financial liabilities 2,580 5,B2y 8,965 - 1,923 19,295
Met non-derivative cash flows 6,052 5,918 16,169 35,327 7,720 73,266
Off Balance sheet cash flows
Loan commitments - - - - 3,680 3,680
Tatal - - - - 3,680 3,680
het cash flows 6052 5,918 16,169 35.317 4030 67,486
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RiSK

The fellowing table breaks down the Bank's main credit exposura at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the

industry and gecgraphy area of the Bank’s main counterparties

Analysis of on balance sheet credit exposure by industry

Personal & Other Servicas
Property & Business Services
Finance, Investrment & Insurance
Retail & Wholesale Trade
Hospitality

Health & Community Services
Other

Households

Printing & Related Actlvities
Subtotal

Allowance for impalrment lossés
Total on balance sheet credit exposure

Analysis of an balance sheet exposures by geographic area

Mew Zealand
Asia
America

_ Total on-balance sheet credit exposures

Dff balance sheet credit exposures
Loan commitmants

Total off-balance sheet credit exposures

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited

Audited
31-Mar-2015
S000

229
36,862
23,572

3,347
1,073
2,283
121
15832
1,116
B4, 435
{256)
85,279

Audited

31-Mar-2015
000

8o.631

372

7

84,279

31-Mar-2015
5000
b7
4337

Audited

31-Mar-2014,
s000

p
24,870
20,930

3,439

2,835
14,186
1,161
67.870

(233)
E7.637

Audited

31-Mar-z014
£000

64, Bb7

2,723

&8
67,637

31-Mar-2044
5000

3,680
3,680
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14 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK({continued)

Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit ennancerments heid:

Maxirmum Maximum
eXposure exposure

{Audited) (Audited)
32-Mar-2pag  33-Mar-zoug

s000 5000
Fixed rate mortgages ™ 8,165 10,570
Variable rate martgages ' 20,640 15,950
Business lending™ 33,333 27,144
Secured lending (other)™ 286 151
Unsecured lending (other) 74 Th
Balance with related parties 2,549 2,770
Due fram ather Anancial institutions 18,350 16,210
Othar assets a 1
Total gross credit exposure 84435 67,870
Allowance for impairment losses (255 (233)
Total net credit exposures 84,179 67,637

" pagidential mortgages are secured by residential properties,
* Business lending is secured by general security agreements and personal guarantes.
" Other personal loans are secured by deposits

The carrying value of non-cash collaters| refiects the fair value of the physical assets limited to the carrying value
of the asset where the exposure is over-collateralised. In certan cases where active markets or recent valuations
of the assets are not available, estimates will be used,

Forassets collateralised by residential or commercial property (and certain other physical assets), where it is not

practicable Lo assess current market valuations of each underlying property, values reflect historical fair values
amended for movements in appropriate external indices,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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20 CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

Concentration of funding arise where the Bank is funded by industries of a similar nature or in particular
geographies. An analysis of financial lisbilities by industry sector and geography is as follows:

(Audited)  (Audited)
31 Maraig 31 Marag

Analysis of funding by industry sector: soo0 s000
Finance, Investment and Insurance 21,446 13,752
Households 11,683 5:636
Personal & Other Services 114 108
; Health & Community Services r -
Others 466 378
Total funding . 33,799 17,875

(Audited)  (Audited)
3t Maraig 31 Mar 14

Analysis of funding by geographical area: 5000 sco0
New Zealand 33,479 17,718
Asia 230 157
Total funding 33,7049 17,875
21 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE TO INDIVIDUALCOUNTERPARTIES

Credit exposure (s calculated on the basks of actual exposure net of any amounts offset and any indvidual credit
Impairment allowances. The credit exposure information excludes credit exposures to connected persons, bank
counterparties and the central government of any cauntry with a long term credit rating of A- or Az ar above, or
fts eguivalent,

There were no individual bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has an aggregate credit exposure
that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity as at 31 Mareh 2015 (32 March 2014 ail),

There were four{4) non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group has an aggregate credit exposure
that equals or exceads 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity as at 3z March 2015 (31 March 2014:2).

There were no individual bank counterparties which the Bank has a peak end-of-dsy aggregate credit exposure
that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's equity for the year ended 31 March 2015 (31 March 2024: nil)

There were five(s) nan-bank counterparties which the Bank hias a peak end of .day aggregate credit exposure
that equals or exceeds 108 of the Sank's equity for the year ended 31 March zo15 (31 March 2014:2)

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE TO INDIVIDUALCOUNTERPARTIES (continued)

32 March 2oa5
Audited

Percentage of Number of Non-Bank Caunterparties
shareholders' equity “A* Rated "B" Rated Unrated Total
As at Balance Date
10% - 1430 . . 3 3
5% - 2% - 1 1
Tatal : - A i
Peak Exposure
200 - 1404 = ' b &
15% - 15% - - 1 3
Total : . 5

31 March zo1y

Audited

Percentage of Mumber of Non-Bank Counterparties
shareholders’ equity "A" Rated "B" Rated Unrated Total
As at Balance Date
109 - 1456 . . 1 1
15% - 19% - - 1 I
Tetal - - 2 2
Peak Exposure
10% - 1430 . - 1

15% - 19% ‘ .

Bank of India (New Zealand) Umnited
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CREDIT EXPOSURE TO CONNECTED PERSONS

2015 2014
5000 5000
Asat 31 March
Credit exposure to connected persons 3,569 2,752
Credit exposure to non-hank connected persons - .
Peak end-of-day
Credit exposure to connected persons 3,508 2,743
Credit exposure to non-bank conniected persons : -
2015 2004

% of Tiera % of Tier 2

= Capital Capital
As at 31 March
Credit exposure to connactad persons B.g% 4%
Credit exposure to non-bank connected persons o.o% o.0%
Peak end-of-day !
Credit exposure to connected persons 7.0% 5.4%
Credit exposure to non-bank connected persons 0.0% o.o% |

This information has been derived in accordance with the Bank's condition of registration and
Connectad Exposure Policy (BSB) and Is net of individual credit impaimment allowances and excludes
advances to connected persons of a capital nature

Peak end-of-day aggregate exposure is derived by determining the maximum and-of-day aggregate
amount of credit exposure aver the accouriting periad and then divided by the Bank's tier one capital
a5 at reporting date.

Asat 33 March 2015, the rating-contingent limit apolicable to the Bank's banking group was 15% of tier
ane capital. Over the year ended 31 March 2015, no changes have been made to the rating-contingent
limiit. Within the everall rating-contingent limit, there is a sublimit of 15% of ter one capital that
applies to the aggregate credit sxposure to non-bank cannected persons. (March 2014:15%)

Aggregate credit exposure to connected persons has been calculated on a gross basis

Aggregate amount of contingent exposures of the Bank's banking group to connected persons arising
from risk lay-off arrangements in respect of credit exposures to counterparties (excluding
counterparties that are connected persons)as at 33 March 201515 snll (March 2014 nill,

Aggregate amount of the Bank's banking group's individual eredit Impairment allowances provided
against credit exposures to connacted persons as at 31 March 2015 is wail (March 2014 i),

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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23 COMMITMENTS

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2015, the Bank does not have any commitments for capital expenditure, | 2034 %nil).
Operating lease commitments

Operating leases relate to the Bank's premises and motor vehicles.

{Audited) (Audited)
3ji-Mar-15 F1-Mar-14

5000 sooo
Mot langer than one year 272 28y
Longer than one year and not langer than five years 672 773
Longer thar five years 385 =1
Total 1,329 1,563

24 INSURANCE BUSINESS AND NON-FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
The Bank does nat conduct any insurance business, securitisation, funds marnagement, ather
fiduciary activities, and marketing and distribution of insurance products.

25 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Bank operates in a single segment; predominatly in the banking and finance industry in New
Zealand,
26 CON TINGENT LIABILITIES ——
{Audited) {Audited)
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-ay
000 $000
Performance/fimancial guarantees issued on beh alf of customers 120 -
Total contingent liabilities 120 -
Undrawn Commitments 4,197 3,680
27 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant subsequent events arising up to the date of slgning of these accounts,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Umited



Appendix 1

Credit Ratings Scales

Long Term Debt

Ratings

Highest quality | Extremely strong capacity to pay interest and principa!
High quality [ Very strang

Uppar mediym grade [ Strong

Medium grade (lowest investment grade) / Adequate
Predominately speculative | Less near term vulnerability to default
Speculative, low grade [ Greater vulnerability

Poor to default | identifiable vulnerability

Highest speculations

Lowest quality, nointerest

Payment in default, in arrears — questionable value

Standard
and
Poor's

Abh,
Ah
A
BEB
BB
B
CCC
cC
C

Moody's

Caa
ca

m

ccc

Credit ratings between AA - CCC by Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings may be modified by the addition of a
plus or minus sign (signalling higher and lower end of the scale respectively). Moody's Investor Services applies

numerle modifies 1,2 and 3 to each generic rating classification with @ 1 indicating a higher ratingand a3

indicating a lower rating within that generic rating category,
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Appendix 2

Condiuans of registration for Bank of india (Mew Tesland] (mitad Thise conditions of reghsiration apply on mmd afer 1 Navembier 2014

The registration af Rank of India |hew Zealand] (ritted {“thir Sank"} b5 4 reglatered Bank is wubect to:the following conditiona:

i Thiat
[al thir Total capitdl ratia of (e banking group 5 oo iess than 8%
{i the Tior §copral ravio of i bondking grous & mot igss than 6%
{ed she Caminen Equlty Tier | cazital rario of the banking group 1s not less than 4,55,
1 thhe Total capital of he Hanking iroup is not less than $30 milion; and
b} the process in Sebpart 24 of the Resarve Bank of New Teafand document: "Capital Adequacy Framework {(Standardised

Approsch)® (BS2A] dured juty 2014 i tollowed for the recoghlten mmd repayment of capital.

For this putpotes of s condiivon of regsiration; capetal, 1he Totsl cameal rang, the 'I‘i!_r 1 capial ratio; snd 1he Common
Equity Tier § capital rtie must be taulated in scoordance with the Reserve Bark of New Zealand document: "Capstal
Adenuncy Framewark |Standardised ApproachT” (BS2A] dated luly 2014,

1A Trat-
T the bank kas an internal cagital pdequacy assessmant process ["ICAAR") that accords with the reduirerments set cut In the
documeant “Gaidelines on @ tank's imternal capital ndequacy assessmant process [ICAARYT {B532) dated Diecomber 2007

b} under 73 1CAAR e pank identifios and megsures (15 *sthermatenal risks” dofined o3 all matoral fiks of he banking
tep that are nat egwiitly cagtured in the caléulation of the Comman Equity Tiar T capétal ratin, the Tin 1 capital ratlo
and the Total capital ratio under the (equirorments set out in the decoment "Capite| Adequacy Framewark [Standardised
Aporoach)” (B52A) dated huty 2014 | and

{=l thié Bark detenmings an mtermal captal allocition fas each dansified and measres “other matera) i
18, Tiat, f tne buffer ratio of the batkng groep i 2.5% or léss, the bamk mostt
[E13 accarding to the lollowing wabla. limit the sgpregate distributions of the bank's amings to the percentage [t 1o

distibutions that corresponas to the panking group's outfer ratio;

Banking group’s buffer ratio Prreentage |mit to distriutions of the bank's earmings
U9 - 0.625% 1%
S0AIS - LI5% %
FL¥5-1.875% ik
*1.875 -2.5% B

fot prepare a capital flan to restare the banking grous’s butfer ritio to above 2.5% within any timelrame determined by the

Reserve Bonk for restonng e buffer ratp; and

fel
Hawn the cigetal plan appreved by the Reserve Bank, For thee burposes of this.conditon of registration, -

Iauitar ratio, “dluributions”, and "saminge” hive the same meaning & in Fart 3 of the Reserve Bank of New ealand document:
“Copltal Ademunsy Framawork (Standardised Approach)” {B524) doted July 70148



& Thiet the banking growup does not conduct ary non-financial actiwicies thar v aggregate are rvnnerint riathe T s okl
Bethities

in this condition of ragistration, the meaning of "matedal” is based on generally dccepted Sccounting pracuce
3 That the banking group's Msurance Business i not grester san 1% of it tors consolidated asssts.

For the puiposes of this condition of registration, the banking group’s insurance Busingss s the sum of the following amounts for
entities in the banking grou

f i busaness of an entity predaminantly sonslsts of insurance budness and thisentity Iy nota subudiany of mother
entiy in the banking group whose husiness ami;rmlmrilh.l consbas of insurance business. the ammint of the insarance
husingss 1o surm |5 the total consalidated assets of fhe group headed by the ennty; and

|} iff the entity comducts msurancn business snd (44 busiess soes not predorminantly oo of insurance business and the
eritity is not @ subsidiary of another entity In the banking growp whose husingss predominaritly consists of insurance
pussiess, the amesmt of e interance Dusinass 1o sum is the total fabtitie relating to the sntty's inmrance busmes
iy the 2guity fetained by she entity 1o meet the sabency or financial souhdness neads of its nsurance business,

i datermilning the total amoant of thie hanking group's insurance busingss

(B il smeunts must refate to'on batance sheet iteems anly, And must comply with gereraliy sccapted scoounting pracice;
ihd
{hi if products or assets of witich an inaurance business is comprised alds contaln 2 non-insurance component. the whole of

$uEk progucts or assets must be consdered pant of ihe inwurance business.

For the purposes of this conditsen ol regisiramon,.
insurance busingss mesns the undenaking or assemptinn of lakilfty a5 an insurer under a confract of nmeance

evsiarer dhd “comtract of lnkiutance” hiave the same maaning a8 grovided In sections § and 7 of the insurance (Prudontial Sugsrizion)
Act 2010

a That the aggregate credil exposures (of & nan-copitad nature and net of ary allowances Ter [mpairment] of the bankag
groug toall conneced persons do not excoed the rating- contingent fimit outlined in tha follewimg mattn:

Cred|t rating of the banki Connected exposare [imit (% of the Beikmg Growp's Ther 1 capital)
A AR wnd bbhove s
AA-fhad n
Aafnd 60
A an
A3 io
BEE+/Baal end below 15

Viithin she rating-contingent imit. cradit expasures [of & non-capital ratere ane net of any aliowances for imgairment) te non-bank
conmectid persone shall fot exeeed 15% of the banking groap's Tier L cpital.

éarthe purposes of this condition of registration, compliance with the rating-ontingent contected exposure [mit is determined in
accordance with the Ressrve Bank of New Fealand documesnt entithed "Connected Expesures Policy” (B54) dared Gerober 2018,
< That pxposures 10 connectad parons ate not on more favelrable terms fe.p. as relates 1o such makters on credit

FssBLTment, beno, iRterest rates, amartisation sehedules and requeement for colliteral) tharn corresponding exposures
i nank-cannecied perstne
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& That the bank complies with the fofowing COrparate govemance reguIremenis:

i !nlnnrﬂ of the bank musst e ot loast Bve dinectars, _

1) the majarisy of the board mambers muss B nonexesutive directars,
[ at heast hall of the bosrd members must be independent directors:
1) an alternate directos, -

il for |nnn-mmd]mrnmsthnnmmme:a\d
1 fior an ndopendims ditecion miust be ihoependet;

) at lirase hall of the indegendent ditectans of the bank muss b ordunly resident in Mew fasiand
i) the chairperson of the board of the Bank must be independant; and
el The bank's CONSUTUIIEN MGST NOE Mcude 3y provson permitling s director, when o rtismg powers or performing

dutles a5 a director, to act other than inwhat he or th balieees 15 th bosy interests of the company |, the Bank).

For the parposes of this condition of negistration, “not-mescutfvr” snd “nolpendent” have the same masning a4 in the Acserve Bank
of New Zealand document entitied “Corparate Gownmancs” (BS14) dated July 2014,

7. That e appoittment af any director, chie! evstuthve offlcer, or expruthe who repors or is accountable dirsctly 1o the
chiel execiutive olficer, is mode in respectof the bank unfess:

1 This tadbie uses the ratng scates of Standard & Poor's, Fiten Ratings snd Moody's investors Senice, [Fiteh Ratings' scale s

Idlentical to Standord & Poor's |
fad 1he fteserve-Bank has treen supplied with &.copy af the comdulum wiae of thit propoded appaintes; anld
(11} the Resarve Bank has advised that it has no objection to thal appointmant.

€ That & person must bot be sposdnted as chaitpersen of the board of the bank unies

{) the Reserve Bank has been supoiied with & copy of the curricuberm vikas of the propesed sppaintad: and

[0} tha Reserve Bank hs advised that i has no objection ta that appeintment,

2 That thie bask has & board dud)y committes, brother separate board committes covering audiz mattars, that mmess the
fotiowing requiremenis:

(&) thie mandate of the cammittes must nclude: snpening the integnty of the bank's Bhancial cantrols, reporting systems and.
internal audit standards:

b} The cameninies must kave at feast theee mombory;

1] nvery member af tha committee must be o nor-executive director of 1he Bank:

(] tha majority ef the memibars of the comrmites mast be independent; and

{e] the chalrperson of the committee must be ndopandent and st not e the chirperson o the bank.

tor she purposes of this sondirion of regatration, “nomexecutve” wid “independent” have thie same meaning a8 in the Reserve Bank
of New Zealond docomaent entitled "Comporate Governance” (B514) dated July 2014

e That a substantisl praportion of the bank's Business |s conducted i and from Mew Zeatand,
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1 That the banking growp complies with the following ouantitative reguirements Tor Hpiidity: risk management:

{a) thie ame-week mismatch ratia of the bonking groun Is not bess thin tero per cent st the end of each business day;
[5] the ane-manth mismatch rato af the banking groug is not less than sers per cont 3t the end of gach business diy; and
el the aneyear core funding ratio of the hanking group is not less tham 75 per cent ot the end of eadh business day.

For thi= purposes of this conditn of registration, the ratios identified muat bie calculated m scoordance with the Reserve Bank of Naw
Zealand docoments entitled "Liguidity Poficy™ [8513) dated July 2004 and "Liguidity Telicy Anme: Liguit Assets” (BS13A] dated
Decamber 2041,

12 Thit the bank has an internal framewodk for liquidity risk mahageement that is 2deguate in the bank'sview for managing
v b s igundiny risk a1 2 prasent leved, and thar, in paroalen

{a) I elestly documented snd cormmusicated 1o & thase |7 1he erganisston with respaniisility for managing lousdity and
biequidty gk

(b1 identifies responsiblity for approval, peersight and implementation of the frarmewaerk and polices far Bguldity Hk
managemeant:

15} identifies the pancpsl methiods that the bank wil wse for messurmg, monitaning sad conmrolling liquidity risk and

<) considers the matarial sounces of stress that the bank might face, and pregarnes the bank to manage siress through &
contrgangy funding plan,

13 That ho-mare than 10% af tital assets miny be beneficially ewned by & SV, For the purposes of tis condition,-

toral assets means all assets of the banking group plus any assets held byv-any 52V that are not included ih the binking group’s assete

SPY means a person: )

{at 1o wkpm any member of the banking group has sold, assignm, or otheewlue tranctired dany asset,

by whio has granted. oy grant, @ security Intores in it ixsets for she benefit of dry heidee of aty covered Bond: snd

[} whircarries on noother businges exiopt Tor that nocessery o incidenal to guaranies the obiigations of any member ol
i Banking group wier a tovered hond

cavered bond means & debt soourity ssued by ony membet of the banking group, for which repaymeit to holders is guarantoed by a
3PV, ang investors retain an unsacured cm on The ssuer.

1a That-
[a} na mpmber of the banking group may gee offoct to 2 gualifying acquisiton or Busines comblnabion thay mests the
natificatinn threshold, and docs not mest the neas-objection fhreshols, unless

i the bk has notified the Reserve Bank In weiting of tha intendzd acqulisibion aor businiess combination and at least 10
winrkhng doys havie passed:; and

[ at the time of (Gtlymg the Reserve Bark of the miended acousiton or DUsiness comiinaton, the tank provided the
Heserve Bank with the information reguired under the Reserve Bank of Kew Zealand Banking Supervision Handbook
document “Signilicant Aoguisibons Podicy” (8515) dated December 2011; and

i} g erber of the banking group ey ghve #ffect to a qualifying acquisition or business comixination that meets the non:
oljertion thredhold mnless

i the bank has natified the Reserve Bank oowriting of the intesded acolisitian or businass corhination
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fily at the tire af notifying the Roverve Bank of the intended scquisition or business combination, the bank provided the
Resarve Bank with the information required undar the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Banking Sopervision Hondbook
dacumunt “Significent Aoquisibons Pelicy™ (BS15) duned Decembser 2071; and

fiiit thve Aeserve-Bank has gven the tark 8 notoe of non-obection to the slgnifican: scquisition or butimess comination,

For the purposes of this cendition of regissration, "gualilying acquisition e husiness combination”, "potilication Shreshold” and “non-
obgection threshedd” have the same miining as in the Resere Bank of New Zealand Barding Sutervision Handbook document
“Swgnificant Acquisitions Policy” (B315) dated December 2011,

15 That, for a loan-to-vatuation measurement geciod. the total of the bank's gualifving new mongage lending amounts mase
not for residentis proparties with a toan-ro-valuauon rano of more than 80%, sxoeed 10% of the ozl of the gualihing
new nartgage lending amsunts arising in the loan-to-vaiuation measutemant period.

16. That the bank must not make a residentls! mortgage Ioan unbess the terms and condistons of the loan contract or the
terms @l Condifions for an assocrated mortgaee requite that 3 Borrower aliteln the bank's agremmnent before the
barrower can grant to another perion a charge over the residential property uted e secusity for the loan.

17 Thaat the bank must rot pesmit a Bormower to gram & tharge in favouwr of another person over & ressdgiiol propesty wed
#@s security for 2 resdential momgage loan utiless the sum of the lending secured by the charge and the loan value fer this
resdental mongage loan wauld not excesd 0% of the properry value of the resdermal property whan the fending
saryrmd by the charge s drawn down

18. That the bank must mot grovide @ residential mortgage boan if the residential property to be mortgaged to the bank as
securty for the rasidential mongage loan (5 subject ta 8 charge in favour of another person uniess the tomal @mount of
rrodit secured by the residential progarty woold not excend S0 of the praperty value wheen the residensial mortgage
Eoan s dravwn down,

1% That the bend must not 0cT b broker or arrenge for 8 member of 145 banking group to provide o residential mortgage
LT

In these conditions of registration,: "banking grocp” means Bank of India [New Jealand] Limated (a5 reporting entity] ang all other entities
Included in the group as defined In. section 6(1) of the Fnancial Markets Conduct Act M3 for the purposes of Part 7 of that A,

Generally accepted accounung practice has the same meaning s in secoon B 01 the Financial teporting Act 2013
In conditions of registration 15 to 18-
loan-tevaluation math, "Joan vatue”, “praperty value®, “gualfying mw mongage lersseng amount” and "residential morigage foan”

ave the sarme-mesaning 4510 the Peeeree Bank of New Zestand document entifed "Framewaork for Besttictions o High-va
Residential Mortgage Lending” 18519) dated July 2014:

lean-tee vialuatioh mpamerermnent prerigd means a poriod of siccalondat menths prding an the et dey of the shrih calendar month, thie
first of which ends on the last day of March 2014,
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DEED OF GUARANTEE

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Dated 14" lanuary, 2011

DEED OF GUARANTEE

By

BANK OF INDIA

In respact of the cbligations of

BO| (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED
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THIS DEED ismade en |4} ngﬂdwra 2014
BY

BANK OF INDIA & body corporats consliuted under ihe Banking Comperites (Acgudeition &
Transfer of Underdakings) Act, 1870, having s Head Ofica at Star House, C-5, G Biock, Banom-
Flilmﬂqmp[ax, Bancra (Esel), Mumoa, Indm (hereinafter refamed to as the "Bank™),

AND gE

BOY (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED & Company incorporated in MNeéw Zealand having s nnlsum§
office &t Level 18, PricewalarhouseCoopars Tower, 188 Quay Stheel Aucklars NEWZIIILHE]
(reretnafies refarred 10 65 "BOINZ)

IN FAVOUR OF
EACH CREDITOR OF BOINZ
WHEREAS : E

b

£k
Euinyg

BOINZ Is a wholly cwnad subsidiary of the Bank and saf Up for the purposs nldﬂuthummﬁ
of tanking In Mew Zealand

Tha Bank aniers into this Doed of Guaranplen for ihe purpoEs of gusreniosing tha obilgations
subsidiary, BolNZ, |o the exdent provided for by the terms of this Deesd

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

a mmumfgm.l.

I this Deed and [n the Recitals, Unkess the context ainersise raquines

=Aithorised Officer” means, where 8 Creditor 15 8 Person oiner than a nalyrad p«ﬂ
or sesrelary of et Person of & person fuly auhodisad by the Crediior under the
seal of the Person,

"Business Day” means sny day, othar than a Ssturday or Sunday or pubic haliday, @wilzh
banks 2re cpen for genersl business i Welingion and Auckland; =

m?!fn%’-f‘" C&/—/”W

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited

]
'-h.m"nun?::mm
M UERH IR RS
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~Creditor’ means each ard any Persen to whom an Obligation & dus ant owed by BocNZ durlng
the validily pariod of ihis Guaranies

"Gumranies” means the guarantee by tho Bané for 1he benefl of The Creditors pursuant snd
subsecl 1o the terms and conaitions of this Deed;

‘Qhltgotion’ mesna a legaliy erfacsabls, undisped luullity o uliyetion of BOINE i & Credior
Tariking ot =sst pef passu wih the clams of unsecured oeditors of BolNZ. FROVIDED THAT
“Chligation”™ shall nof inciede:

(5) any liabillty of BINZ in respect of Special exemplary of puniive damages, andior

(b} any lisblity for paymunt of lexes. fates. mposls, duties o similar government charges;
andior
(-] w:ﬂhﬂlhm@aﬁuﬂwﬁ? subject to a bona fide diepute, andior

{d) sy obligaton in respect of which the Cradilor Sas not submified proper proof sod otfwr
decumenis and saouriy. 1o annble BCIME to discharge the said obligations; andior

{e)  sny clalmyoblgation in respect ofn contingen labdlity; andfor

i sny claimfabilily which & barred by (he law of limitation or such Smiar lsws.

*Person” masns any parson, firm, trust, esiate, coporalion, asscciation, co-operative, governmany
or governmantEl agency.

1.2 Wardz importing the singular number e piural nomber shall inakude the plural number snd singular
niumber respactively. Words imporiing any genter dhall neuce svery gendsr,

13 FReferenoss o laws, siatules of legistation are 1o the Gwa. steties or legis@ion for the fime being
in farcs Un New Zeatand, unless tha contrary sppears from the contesxt of this Deed

.  GUARANTEE

21 The Bank heraby uncondilionally guarantees for the benefit of aach Creditor tha due and punciual
payment by BolNZ of sach and every Obligation (whelher at stated matunty o upon accelaration )
MW Wiy oF 10 becorme owing by BothZ fo the Cradier during the temm of fe Guarentes ko fhe
intent inat should BalNZ defaull in the due and puaciual payment of any sich Obligation, the Bank
shall, upan weitten demand by the relevant Cradido: under clauss 3.2, forthwith pay or Cause o be
fisdd 10 the Credilor all smounts then due and Unpaio with respect jo such Obligation togeer with
all cogls and expenses ncurred by the Creditor n ecforcing the Guarsntes

2.2 The Gusmntes & & confinding gueraniee and emill nol be consitersd as satisfied by any
intermadiote payment end shall remaln in foroe Ll the lermiication or explny of the Guatantee.

23 Subjecl 1o the terms of this Deed, neithar the Takifly of Bank, nor any of the tghts of any Credior,
urder the Guarantea shall be affected or discharged by anyining which, but for this clause, gt
operate 1o affest or oiacharge the Ishilty of, or otherwise provide a defencec1s, e Suarantar
{whather or riot known to, of dons or amitted io be dane by, the Guaramian.

24 Mowdhstending clauss 2.2, a Crediine may al sny lime by 81 insttument in wiifing, nefease the
Bank fram |ty liability yndar thes Guarentes n relation ta that Credilor

“"‘“‘E—} Cﬁlfﬂ" W““

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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2E  Trme Ssnkshal be lisble only tor paymunt of an Obligation in the mannar, (o the exent and up 0

the smount thal BaiNZ would be fabie or permdtad to make payment in ssbistecuon of sush

| : Olbligation under appicabie taws and rogufiiiens and n cetermining and making sudh payment

thia Bank shal b endilsd fo doduct the amounls [f any} whish fhe Bark |3 enliied n low or m

squity to o5-0f or counterclaim against the Credilor' W wham thil Obligation (& ewsd and the

amuounts i any) which BolNZ could have seholf o7 cowvencamad in e or in aquity ageost the

Creditar to whom such Othgation 15 owed il BolNZ were making payment b Ul Creditar n hes of

thi Barve Mefhing contained in fhis Desd ahall raduce i faberty of he Bank with mspech 1o any

Cisigition of BpINZ which is reduced or discharged by reason of Ihe ineclwncy, sdministration,
lhquidation, recahvarsnis or rearganisation of Baih

3 DEMAND AND PAYMENT

34 A Credilor snall be anilied ta make & demand under this Deed if and oy

(@) lie Cradior has served witien demand (s *Primary Damand') an BalNZ wih proger presf
for fhe: payment of an Obligation wiict remains uripald beyond ita dus dafe;

(b} the Crediior hes complied wih lhe requirements of BOINZ Inc'uding with iegard io
decumantation and sesurfty and s Prmary Demand remens unsstisfod o whole of in et
for @ pennd of 5 Busness Cays after submizsion of necessany Prmany Demand:

I ﬁhﬂnhdml!_:md]tolundlrlhilwhﬁrﬂhﬂﬂmnd'}s}nﬂhuﬂuﬁwhmw
shall be sccampaniad by B stshuiory dectaration mada by the Credifor ar by an Authonssd Gificar

of iha Cradizor stafing.
{a) e maicercy mnd pizce of business of he Creditor,
k) muauhZhutﬁhdmmumﬂhﬁum

{6} that & Primary Demiand in respeat of thal Obligation Has oeen given o BoiNZ (sccompanied
by & verfiad copy of thal Primary Demand) and that such Primary Demand has e
unsatisfied for o ponod of & Busness Diays as siwtea in 3.9(0);

(d} el paticldars of the nature of itad Obligation (pecompaniod By & venfied copy of any
documest flving rine to that Ohligation);

(e} 1haithe Obligation ranks &1 leasl parl passy with 15 claime of ursecuned crediiors of BofNZ
genarady,

(i ine cumanding amount and cufrensy of that Gbbigation; and
(g} that thite s no bona fide dispute relating 1o thas Cblgation,

3.4 Servies of the Credicrs Demend end 8 accompanying Socurments under clhuse 33 on the Sank
shall constitule 8 wittien demand by the Creditor under clause 2.7,

e petm——

Page s

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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4, PAYMENTS
4.4 Aﬂmmmuwmammmm:mmcmmhmncmmwmm-nm!ummm
ralevan Chligaficn ks denominated

42 Paymants hereunder shall be mace frae snd clesr of any deductan o withnokfings. 1n e evanf
thal tve Daclk fs probibiled by w Trom mﬂmmparmhmnwﬂnurﬁﬂmﬁmn
wilhholdings; Inen the Bank shall pey suen sddaioeal amount fo the relevant Credilor as may bo
nmgassary in order it the actual ameunt receives afier al applicable deductions and withholdings
shail squat (e srmoun) that weuld have been receivad If such deductions of withhoidings wera nol
reguirad,

5, REPRESENTATIONS
‘5.4 The Bank repreasents antd wirranis thal
(&1 1|z & registerad bank duly organised and valdy sxisting untier the liwe f India;

[15Y] nmmewmmmmn-ﬁMMpﬂnmmrMMuwn&w
upon it Lnder this Deed |n #ccomance with s tarms; and

o) this Deed sonsthites = veld, binding and andorceabie obligation upon i,
6. TERMINATION OF GUARANTEE

5.1 Netwithstanding anything 18 the eanirary in this Daed, the Guerantes shall lermingls sutematicarly
on b firsl 10 occur of the Toflewing avents:
{2y  inrespect of 4l Obligations &
(il mny substantial assel of BolE, or
(W} eny share in the ssued capltal of BalNE

uammrmwwlh-mmﬂmzﬂmaawmmnuw
substllvialon theraaf (iHe “Government) ar any ently susceeding o Ihs powers of any such
Govesnment of any agancy of any sech Govermmant &f any such succkssar entity or any
aulbuorily which s owned o coniralled by any futh Government & Bny sech sUCCESEar entity
excopt whens such expropriation or natisnalisation reauls irem tha default by BolNZ of any
stalube, regulation or efhar binding Law, or

{B) & changs in any lew or feguistion in any jurisdiclion wifleh renders the Guemnise ([Bags or
Inoperative in Naw Zealand or

el BOINZ cessing to be 2 wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank,

62 Immadiately after e Bark becomes mware &l the terminson of the Guerenies purscant 4o cliiuss
8,1, the Bank shali notity BalN2 themeof and gve sotize of such terminstion by ar mdvertisement it
8 newspaper sirculating generally tnrougheout Nuw Zesland.

e SZ“‘" u,v/,"’f /’/:

St ik

p—

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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7, BUBRDGATION

74 The Bank ard BelNZ expressly pgree Ihat the Sank is snd shall be entitied to all the nghts and
remedias of & guatanior unper law includieg, without fmiling the genaslily of e foregoing, all
nights of subragation which stall scorue 10 the Bank by witie of any payment hamunier by tha
Bank to or far he banift of any Creditor and, subjec o the law. e Sank shall be enfifed o claim
(ha benefit of and paricipsts in any- security now of horeaNer neid by fiat Credior from BollNE
gither in whole oF Upon b pre-rata bass, 28 the case may De, where the Bank has pald all maneys
o or for fhe beneft of tal Credior under this Deed  Nofwihslanding e genemliy of the
foregoing. Ihe Bank shadl not exerclse or sesk tn enforce any claim again HolZ (whether or not
hmnﬂm;hrdnmwmhtmnfmrnmnmpnin‘numumﬁmmhmawm Bank
10 & Greditor in respect of an Obligaton unill the detault of B NI in respect of thal Onligation has
wesn hily rarnedied by BolhE or the Bank.

£ DEALINGS BETWEEN THE BANK AND THE CREDITORS

8.1 Amrmnfn.mnﬁmﬂmnmrmmzznmnnndmmmuﬂ
dial with one snolher ms prrcipsl iy retaticn 1o all maters ander of in relation to ihis Deed, the
Grarantes ainid Balig

82 \Without limiting the generalily of clawse 8, the Bank shall be and is entiied lo serve any notice,
gemands or statements Tn connackion with this Deed upen that Creditor (ot #z pluce of business
speching in ihe Credior's Demand) and the Sank shall be and is antiffed 1z make any paymont
whick § & Bable to pay to the Credior wnder This Dwed divectty (o (hat Credito: ant het thraugh any
oliwer Person.

9. NOTICES
8.1 N‘qrmﬁb!I:nI]'mmm“n!ﬂﬂ',rjnmap:t:nfmltutnﬂimlrbl\'IIWiMn'ﬂpuHthl
newspaper cheulating genemlly troughout New Zesland: Any such nolice shall Be deemed to

haove been given on the date of putiication or, I publishad mone than ence, an the date of et
pubiicamon,

Griee g Gt

A PO Page s

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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82

10,

10

Any nobce, damand, statement or olher decument requied to be senvwd on of dalivared to e
Bank or Bo!NZ under of in ralaSan to thia Deead ("Netice”) shall be bn wrting signed By he party
giving ine Notios or By an Autharised Oficer of that parly, shail be made, served or given {elbjac
in (e case of the Bank to chmee 19.2% by being lefr 91 or sent by orepaid mal of by facsimile a8
lollowa:

1o the Bank:
Bank of indis

Irtarmatiomal Divislon

3" Fioar, East Wing
Eiar Houss
C-5, G Rlock

Pandra - Hutla Complex

Bandra (Easi}

Mumipal - 400 051

Irutiian

Attentiner The Ganeral Manager, Internalional Division

to BalNZ
BOl (New Zealand) Limited

Leval 18, PricewatarhouseCoopars Tower

188 Cluay Streel, Auckland

Hew Zexmnd

Attrtion: Managing Directon

or 16 sUch cther address of facaimile number as shall hisve been noofied (in scccrasnce wilh s
ause) 1o e ofhes pony hersto, Mo Motite shall be deemed 12 have boon recelved By the Bank or
BoiMZ antll aciunlly received by e relevant paty lo wham || ls addvessed al lis designated
Hifdress

AMENDMENT

Tha Bank may, from tme bo lime and without say suthorly or sesenl of BofNZ of the Creditors,
ailer. madify, of add to this Deed if in the reascnable opinion of ha Bank

{a) the alteration, modification or addition s mads 19 copect & manifest esror or = of 3 forrmal o
tecnnical nature;

{0 the modiication, alteration or addiian & necessary to comply with the provisions of any smtute,
whether - not equined by any statidary sshorily) o

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited
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= [} the sferslion, modifcation o sddiiion I desiruble for the pumose of more advanlagesusty
arménistearing the iights and ohigations eetatilished undar this Deed

and i any case such modification, allaration or addiion 15 considared by the Bank, acting In good
faih not to be matedally orefudicial to the Credifors a8 whole, o laras known 10 4L

11, GOVERNING LAW

1.1 This Deed shall he governed by and conetruad |n accordance with the laws for the tme being in
force in New Zealand: T Bank ane BolNZ esch hareby subniit, for 1he purpeaes of i Deed, to
the mon-owetoeive jurisdiction of the Courtik of New. Zeafand in respect of al kspal sclions ansing
under or in relatitn (o this Deed.

11.2 Ths Bank hereby Frevacably appoints BolNZ (and BalNZ bersly sccapls such sppointment) to be
ﬂuqmﬂﬂmmmmnluﬂi{zn{mmbﬂmwmnﬂmkmrﬂ:pﬂctnl-aﬁmll‘tnmm
Meéw Faaland sreing Under or in relaton o this Seed and the Sank agrees that ony such process
shall bo propery sarves upen the Bark I delversd to BolMZ 8 ils adduess for the sspvics of
Mobices sel oul in clause 9.2

12 ASSIGNMENT

121 No pary fo Inls Desd may sssign fiz rights or obligntisna hansundes without the conseat in writing
of the gthar pany.

13, CERTIFICATE

131 BolNZ shall sdvise fhe Bank in witng within fowteen (14) days of @ requsst in witing from the
Bark (made ng mora freguantly Than quanery o fallewng recespt oy 1t of 2 Credtor's Demand; to
do o, of its best estimele. of the aggregete prinsips| amaunt of the Obfigations for whish 1t s
rdetied ax &t stich date io sither il of the Crediors generally or to those Creditors speesied by
the Bank in iz request

EXECUTED s a Desd
)
EXECUTED s a DEED for and on bahalf -—
of BANK OF INDIA ] Y-
— AT (Y ARTAN]
‘; Ganaral Manager Chiefl Manager
Intermational Intermnational Division

EXECUTED as 8 DEED forand e behall )
of BOI (NEW ZEALAND) LINITED ) af,.J\_/\-"-/’_’ o 5
: ///"J —

— ———
[ B.A PRABHAKAR | e
Director Diractor Pl
LS DGEE Sl Poge 7

Bank of India {(New Zealand) Limited



[ndependent auditor’s report

To the Shareholder of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

Report on the Bank’s disclosure statement

We have audited the accompanying financial statements and supplementary information
{excluding supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy) of Bank of India (New
Zealand) Limited (“the bank™) on pages 11 to 50 of the disclosure statement. The financial
statements comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information of the bank. The
supplementary information comprises the information that is required to be disclosed in
accordance with Schedules 4, 7, 13, 14, 15 and 17 of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements
(New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 as amended (the *Order™),

Directors’ responsibility for the disclosure statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of bank’s disclosure statement, including
financial statements prepared in accordance with Clause 24 of the Order and generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand, and that presents fairly the matters to which they relate.
The directors are also responsible for such internal controls as they determine are necessary to
enable the preparation of the bank’s financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of supplementary
information, in accordance with Schedules 4. 7, 13, 14, 15 and 17 of the Order,

Aunditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the disclosure statement, including the financial
statements prepared in accordance with Clause 24 of the Order and the supplementary
information disclosed in accordance with Schedules 4, 7, 13, 14, 15 and 17 of the Order. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the bank’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the bank's financial statements (excluding the supplementary information relating
to Capital Adequacy). The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the avditor considers internal controls relevant
to the bank’s preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the matters to which they
relate in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the bank’s internal controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial
statements.

-1
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opmion.

Qur firm has provided other services to bank in relation 1o advisory services related to FATCA
compliance and review of LVR Policy. Subject to certain restrictions, pariners and employees
of our firm may also deal with the bank on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the business of the bank. These matters have not impaired our independence as
auditors of the bank. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the bank.

Opinion on financial statements

It our opinion the financial statements of Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited (*the bank™) on
pages || to 30:

e complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand: and

e presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at 31 March 2015 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Opinion on supplementary information (excluding supplementary information relating io
Capital Adequacy)

In our opinion, the supplementary information (excluding supplementary information relating to
Capital Adequacy) that is required to be disclosed in accordance with Schedules 4, 7, 13, 14, 15
and 17 of the Order, and is included within notes 16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 24 of the disclosure
Statement;

e has been prepared. in all material respects, in accordance with the guidelines issued pursuant
to section 78(3) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 and any conditions of
registration;

¢ s in accordance with the books and records of the bank in all material respects; and

o fairly states, in all material respects, the matters 1o which it relates in accordance with those
Schedules.

Other matier

The financial statements, including supplementary information (excluding supplementary
information relating to Capital Adequacy), of the Bank as at and for the year ended 31 March
2014 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements, including supplementary information (excluding supplementary information relating
to Capital Adequacy). on 27 May 2014.

Review report on the supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy

We have reviewed the capital adequacy information, as disclosed in note 15 of the disclosure
statement for the year ended 31 March 20135,
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Directors’ responsibility for the supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy

The directors are responsible for the preparation of supplementary information relating to
capital adequacy that is required to be disclosed under Schedule 9 of the Order and prepared in
accordance with the Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach) (BS2A) and
described in note 15 of the disclosure statement,

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the capital adeguacy information based on our
review. We conducted our review in accordance with NZ SRE 2410 Review of Financial
Statements Performed by the Independent Auditer of the Entity issued by the New Zealand
External Board., As the auditor of the bank, NZ SRE 2410 requires that we comply with the
ethical requirements relevant to the audit of the annual financial statements. and plan and
perform the review to obtain limited assurance about whether the capital adequacy information
is, in all material respects:

s prepared in accordance with the Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)
(BS2A); and

« disclosed in accordance with Schedule 9 of the Order.
A review is limited primarily to enquiries of bank’s personnel and analytical review procedures
applied to the financial data, and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not

performed an audit in respect of the capital adequacy disclosures, and accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion on these disclosures.

Review opinion on the supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy, disclosed in note 15 of the disclosure

statement, is not, in all material respects:

e prepared in accordance with the Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)
(BS2A); and

s disclosed in accordance with Schedule 9 of the Order.

14

Auckland
17 June 20135
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